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The central idea for the annual report hinges on our belief of TRUST. Our
relationships are based on this simple foundation. Trust is a true
representative of our organisation’s core value, thinking, respectability &

dependability.

As we progress, we continue to build our organisation on this conviction,
based on our positive experiences; something that we endeavour to earn

everyday. Because,

‘Trust is always the answer.’

Inthe cover, the use of the lines meeting at the top connotes convergence of
our expertise to deliver on a common objective. These lines also bring a

sense of movementand progress.
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Notice

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE TWENTY THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF JM FINANCIAL LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON
FRIDAY, JULY 25, 2008 AT 4.00 PM AT WALCHAND HIRACHAND HALL, 4TH
FLOOR, INDIAN MERCHANTS' CHAMBER, CHURCHGATE, MUMBAI -400020TO
TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

l. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at March 31,2008 and the Profit &
Loss Account for the year ended on that date together with the reports of the Board of

Directorsand the Auditors thereon.
2. Todeclaredividend.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. E A Kshirsagar, who retires by rotation and being

eligible, offers himselffor reappointment.

4. ToappointaDirectorin place of Mr. D E Udwadia, who retires by rotation and being eligible,

offers himselffor reappointment.

5. To appoint M/s. Khimji Kunverji & Co., as the Statutory Auditors of the Company and to

authorise the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.
SPECIALBUSINESS

6. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution

asan Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Paul Zuckerman, who was appointed as an Additional Director of
the Company by the Board of Directors pursuant to Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956
(“the Act”), read with Article 117 of the Articles of Association of the Company and whose
term of office as a Director expires at this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom a
notice in writing under Section 257 of the Act has been left at the registered office of the
Company by a Member signifying his intention to propose him as a candidate for the office of
Director, be andis hereby appointed as a Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation in

accordance with Section 257 and other applicable provisions of the Act.”
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To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a

Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 198, 269, 309 and 316 read with
Schedule Xlll and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”),
and any statutory modification thereto or re-enactment thereof, and subject to the approval of the
Central Government, if any required, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to
the appointment of Mr. Nimesh N Kampani as Managing Director of the Company for the period
from May 28, 2008 to March 31,201 I, on the terms and conditions, including the remuneration as
set outin the draft Agreement to be entered into between the Company and Mr. Kampani, placed
before the meeting and initialled by a Director for the purpose of identification, with authority to
the Board of Directors (“the Board”, which term shall be deemed to include any Committee of the
Board) to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said appointment and / or agreement, as
may be agreed to between the Board and Mr. Kampani, but so that the limits specified in
Schedule XIII to the Act or such other higher limits as may be approved by the Central

Governmentare not exceeded.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year
during the tenure of Mr. Kampani as Managing Director, the remuneration as set out in the draft
Agreement between Mr. Kampani and the Company, be paid or granted to him as minimum
remuneration PROVIDED THAT the total remuneration by way of salary, allowance and bonus /
performance incentive shall not exceed the applicable ceiling in terms of Schedule XIlI to the Act,
as may be amended from time to time or any equivalent statutory re-enactment thereof for the

time beinginforce.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things as it may consider necessary, expedient, usual or proper to give full effect to this

resolution.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a

Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 309(4) read with Section 309(7) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”), so long as the Company has a Managing or
Whole-time Director or Manager, the Company do pay to its Directors (other than the Managing
Director) commission not exceeding | % of the net profits of the Company computed in the manner
laid down in Section |98 of the Act for each of the five financial years commencing April |,2007, such
commission being divisible among the Directors in such proportion as the Board of Directors may

from time to time determine.”
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT if, during the aforesaid five financial years, at any time, the Company
does nothaveaManaging or Whole-time Director or Manager, then the Company do pay toiits Directors
(other than the Managing Director) commission not exceeding 3% of the net profits of the Company
computed in the manner laid down in Section 198 of the Act for each of the five financial years
commencing April |, 2007, such commission being divisible among the Directors in such proportion as

the Board of Directors may from time to time determine.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the aforesaid five financial years, the Company do pay to its
Directors (other than the Managing Director) commission in excess of 1% of the net profits
computed as aforesaid where the Company has a Managing or Whole-time Director or Manager and
commission in excess of 3% of the net profits computed in the manner aforesaid where the Company
does not have a Managing or Whole-time Director or Manager, subject in either case with the prior

approval of the Central Government under Section 309 and other applicable provisions of the Act.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the aforesaid resolutions shall be in supersession of the
special resolution passed at the Twenty First Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
September 7,2006 and shall remainin force for a period of five financial years commencing from
thefinancial year 2007-08.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a

Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 94 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”), and pursuant to the provisions of Article 9 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, and subject to such approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions,
if any, as may be required from any regulatory authority, the consent of the Company be and is
hereby accorded to the sub-division of the existing equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10/-
(Rupees ten) each in the share capital of the Company into |10 equity shares of the face value of

Re. I/- (Rupee one) each.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 1999, as amended from time to time, and the existing
Employee Stock Option Scheme as approved by the Members at the Twenty Second Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on September 6,2007, the Board of Directors (“the Board”) and/ or the
Compensation Committee of the Board (constituted, interalia, for supervision and administration of
the scheme) be and are hereby authorised to make amendments to the above mentioned scheme as
they in their absolute discretion deem fit including adjustments to the stock options granted / to be
granted to employees / Directors of the Company and / or its subsidiaries under the scheme, with
respect to number of options and / or exercise price in appropriate proportion to the aforesaid sub-

division of equity shares of the Company.”
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things as it may consider necessary, expedient, usual or proper to give full effect to this
resolution and /or to settle any question or difficulty that may arise with regard to the sub-division of

equity shares as aforesaid.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an

Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 94 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”), and pursuant to provisions of Article 4 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, the authorised share capital of the Company be and is hereby increased
from Rs. 50,00,00,000/- (Rupees fifty crore) divided into 5,00,00,000 (five crore) equity shares of
Rs.10/- (Rupees ten) each to Rs. 1,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees one hundred crore) divided into
1,00,00,00,000 (one hundred crore) equity shares of Re. /- (Rupee one) each.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a

Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the first sentence in Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the

Company be replaced by the following new sentence:

'The Authorised Share Capital of the Companyis Rs. 1,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees one hundred crore)
dividedinto 1,00,00,00,000 (one hundred crore) equity shares of Re.l/- (Rupee one) each’.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things as it may consider necessary, expedient, usual or proper to give full

effect to this resolution.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a

Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 3| and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”), the present Article 3 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
bereplaced by the following:

3. ‘The Authorised Share Capital of the Company shall be as stated in Clause V of the

1

Memorandum of Association of the Company'.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things as it may consider necessary, expedient, usual or proper to give full

effectto this resolution.”
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To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a

Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Article 177 of the Articles of Association of the Company and
subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) (including any
amendments thereto or re-enactment thereof), guidelines / regulations issued by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India from time to time, the Listing Agreement(s) entered into by the
Company with the Stock Exchange(s), where shares of the Company are listed and subject to
receipt of necessary regulatory approvals, if any required, consent of the Company be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors (“the Board”, which term shall be deemed to include
any Committee of the Board) of the Company to capitalise Rs. 45,00,00,000 (Rupees forty five
crore) out of the Company's securities premium account and transfer to equity share capital
account by way of issue and allotment of 45,00,00,000 (forty five crore) equity shares of Re.l/-
(Rupee one) each, as bonus shares credited as fully paid-up, to Members of the Company, whose
names appear in the Register of Members or as the beneficial owner(s) of the equity shares of the
Company in the records of the Depository(ies) as on the Record Date to be determined by the
Board, in the ratio of 3 (three) new fully paid up equity shares of Re. |/- (Rupee one) each for every
2 (two) fully paid up equity shares of Re. |/- (Rupee one) each held by them, and that the bonus
sharessoissuedandallotted be treated for all purposes as anincrease in the nominal amount of the

equity capital of the Company held by each such Memberand notasincome.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT no bonus shares be issued to the Members in respect of their
respective fractional entitlements, ifany; all such fractional entitlements shall be consolidated and the
Company shall issue and allot the bonus shares in lieu of such consolidated fractional entitlements in
the name of any Director(s) or officer(s) of the Company, who shall hold the said shares in trust on
behalf of the Members entitled to the fractional entitlements with the express understanding that
such Director(s) or officers(s) shall sell the said bonus shares, as soon as practicable, at such price or
prices to such person or persons, as the Board or any person or persons authorised by the Board in
that behalf deem fit, and pay to the Company, the net sale proceeds (after deducting all expenses, if
any, incidental to the same), which proceeds shall be distributed by the Company among the Members

in proportion to their respective fractional entitlements.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the equity shares to be issued and allotted in pursuance of this

resolution shall rank pari passu with the then existing equity shares of the Company, inall respects.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 1999, as amended from time to time and the existing
Employee Stock Option Scheme as approved by the Members at the Twenty Second Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on September 6,2007, the Board of Directors (“the Board”) and/ or the

Compensation Committee of the Board (constituted, interalia, for supervision and administration of
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the scheme) be and are hereby authorised to make amendments to the above mentioned scheme as
they in their absolute discretion deem fit including adjustments to the stock options granted to
employees/Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries under the scheme, with respect to number
of options and / or exercise price for the options granted in appropriate proportion to the ratio of

bonus sharesto beissued to the Members of the Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT no allotment letters shall be issued to the allottees of the bonus
shares and that the certificate(s) in respect of bonus shares shall be dispatched to the allottees except
in respect of those allottees who hold shares in the dematerialised form for whom the credit of bonus
shares will be given to their respective beneficiary account(s) within the period prescribed under

relevantregulations.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things as it may consider necessary, expedient, usual or proper to give full effect to this
resolution and / or to settle any question or difficulty that may arise with regard to the issue and

allotment of bonus shares.”

By Order of the Board

P K Choksi
Group Head - Compliance & Legal
& Company Secretary

Date: May 28,2008

Registered office:
141, Maker Chambers I
Nariman Point
Mumbai-400021
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Notes:

a. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE
PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED
NOT BE AMEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE PROXIES, IN ORDER TO BE VALID, MUST BE DULY
FILLED IN ALL RESPECTS AND DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY
NOTLATER THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THEMEETING.

b. The relevant Explanatory Statements pursuant to Section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956, in

respectof the businessatitemnos. 6 to | 3 of the Notice setoutaboveare annexed hereto.

c. The Register of Members of the Company will remain closed from Friday, July 18,2008 to Friday, July
25,2008 (both days inclusive).

d. Members while corresponding with the Company or its Registrars & Share Transfer Agents (RTA)
viz., M/s. Sharepro Services (India) Private Limited, are requested to quote their respective Register

Folio Numbers or Client IDs of their beneficiary account(s), as the case may be.

e. Brief profiles of each of the Directors, who are proposed to be appointed, are furnished in the

Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of the Annual Report.

f. The Company has made necessary arrangements for the Members to hold their shares in the
electronic mode. Those Members who hold shares in the physical mode are requested to
dematerialise the same by approaching any of the Depository Participants (DPs). In case any
Member wish to dematerialise the shares held by him / her and need any assistance, he / she may write

to the Company Secretary at the registered office of the Company.
g. Paymentofdividend through Electronic Clearing Service (ECS):

All companies are mandatorily required to use the ECS facility wherever available for distributing dividends,

wherein the dividendamount would be directly credited to the Members' respective bankaccounts.

The Members, holding shares in the dematerialised mode are advised to intimate their bank details /
change in the bank details to their respective DPs. Those Members who hold their shares in the
physical mode are advised to send the bank details / changes therein to the RTA or to the Company. In
case of absence of the ECS facility, the Company will send the dividend warrants / demand drafts / pay

ordersto theregisteredaddress of the Members.

To enable the Company print bank account details on the dividend warrants / demand drafts / pay
orders as a security measure for the credit to the correct recipient, Members are required to update

their bankaccount details with the DPs, RTA and/or the Company.
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Annexure to the Notice

EXPLANATORY STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO SECTION 173(2) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 1956

Itemno. 6

Mr. Paul Zuckerman was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company at the meeting of the Board of
Directors held on October 29,2007 in accordance with the provisions of Section 260 of the Companies Act,
1956 (“the Act”) read with Article |17 of the Articles of Association of the Company. He holds office of
Director up to the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. It is proposed to appoint him as a
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation, at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The
Company has received a notice in writing from Mr. S R Nayak, a Member of the Company signifying his
intention to propose Mr. Zuckerman as a candidate for the office of Director along with a deposit of
Rs. 500/- in accordance with Section 257 of the Act, which will be refunded to the said Member if

Mr.Zuckermanis elected as Director.

Mr. Zuckerman has read Economics at Cambridge University before doing his Ph.D. in Agricultural
Economics from Reading University, United Kingdom. Mr. Zuckerman was associated with various
international organisations such as World Bank in Washington DC, International Institute of Tropical
Agriculture, Ibadan, Nigeria. He was actively associated with SG Warburg International, prior to its
acquisition by UBS. In his capacity as Vice Chairman with SG Warburg International, Mr. Zuckerman had
been associated closely with Indian companies in the early days of globalisation. Mr. Zuckerman's
association with JM Financial Group dates back many years, when he was actively engaged in discussions for
several business and development opportunities for India in global markets. Apart from being a member of
the Board of Directors of several reputed companies, Mr. Zuckerman is currently the Chairman & CEO of

Zuckerman & Associates Ltd.

The Board of Directorsis of the view that the Company would immensely benefit from Mr. Zuckerman's rich
and long experience in the financial services sector and accordingly commends the passing of an ordinary
resolution proposedatitem no. 6 of the Notice.

Mr. Zuckermanisinterestedin the resolution proposed atitem no.6 of the Notice since it relates to his own

appointment.
Itemno.7

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) at its meeting held on May 28, 2008, subject to the approval of the
Members in a general meeting, unanimously appointed Mr. Nimesh N Kampani as 'Managing Director' of the
Company within the meaning of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) for the period from May 28, 2008 to
March 31,201 | ataremuneration and on terms and conditions as decided by the Compensation Committee
ofthe Boardandassetoutinthe draft Agreementto be enteredinto by the Company with Mr. Kampani.
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The material terms and conditions of the draft Agreement to be entered with Mr. Nimesh N Kampani

referredtointheresolutionatitemno.7 ofthe Noticeare as under:
l. Period ofappointment: May 28,2008 to March 31,201 I.

2. Mr. Kampani to perform and exercise such powers as are entrusted to him from time to time by the

Board of Directors of the Company.
3. Mr. Kampani to devote his time and attention to the business of the Company.

4. Mr. Kampani to undertake such travel in India or out of India as may be necessary or required in

connection with the business and affairs of the Company.
5. Remuneration: Mr. Kampani to be paid the following remuneration:

) Salary: Rs. 2,83,025/- per month or such higher amount as may be decided by the Board or

Compensation Committee of the Board from time to time.

ii)  Allowance of Rs. 2,83,025/- per month or such higher amount as may be decided by the Board

or Compensation Committee of the Board from time to time.

iii)  Bonus / performance incentive: As may be decided by the Board or the Compensation

Committee of the Board from time to time.
iv)  Mr.Kampanishall be entitled to receive the following perquisites:
a) The Company's contribution to the provident fund as per the Company's rules;
b) Gratuity as per the Company's rules;
) Encashment ofaccumulated leaveat the end of tenure as per the Company's rules;

However, the above perquisites to the extent not taxable under Income Tax law, shall not be

includedfor the purpose of computation of overall ceiling of remuneration.

V) Mr. Kampani is entitled to receive perquisites from JM Financial Consultants Private Limited, a
subsidiary company, in which he is currently Chairman & Managing Director and hence it is not

proposedto pay any perquisites to him from the Company other thanas mentioned under (iv) above.

vi)  Ceiling on remuneration: The remuneration payable to Mr. Kampani as provided in the
Agreement is subject to the overall ceiling on managerial remuneration as provided under
Sections |98 and 309 read with Schedule XlII to the Act.

vii)  Minimum remuneration: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the
Agreement, if in any financial year during the tenure of Mr. Kampani as Managing Director, the

Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the remuneration payable by the
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Company to Mr. Kampani shall be subject to the provisions of Section |l and / or Section Il of
Part Il of Schedule Xlll to the Act or any other law or enactment for the time being or from time

totime,inforce.
viii) Mr.Kampanito bearapplicableincome tax on the aforesaid remuneration.
Mr.Kampani:

1) to be entitled to leave on full salary as per the rules of the Company for a period of 25 (twenty
five) days for every |2 (twelve) months service and to sick leave as per the rules of the Company
for the time being in force. However, he is not entitled to encash any sick leave not actually

availed by him.
ii) notto be paidany sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or any Committees of the Board.
Mr.Kampani may hold directorship(s) ofany other company(ies).

Mr. Kampani not to disclose, divulge, make public or use any confidential information or knowledge

obtained by himas to the business or affairs of the Company.

The Company to be entitled to terminate Mr. Kampani's employment as Managing Director by notice

inwritingifhe:
a) commitsabreach of any of the terms, provisions or covenants contained in the Agreement;

b) becomes insolvent or makes any compromise or arrangement with his creditors or ceases to

beaDirector ofthe Company;

) isunable to oris prevented by reason of ill health oraccident, disability, physical or mental, from
performing his duties for a period of 150 (one hundred and fifty) consecutive days in any period

of 12 (twelve) consecutive calendar months.

Either party to be entitled to terminate the Agreementatany time by giving to the other party not less
than 3 (three) months notice in writing in that behalf without assigning any reason PROVIDED that
the Company would be entitled to terminate Mr.Kampani's employment at any time by payment to

him of 3 (three) months salary and allowance, in lieu of such notice.

Upon termination of his employment with the Company, whether due to efflux of time or otherwise, Mr.

Kampani to handover his charge to such personas may be nominated by the Board of Directorsin thatbehalf.

In the event of death of Mr. Kampani during his tenure as Managing Director, the Company to pay to
his legal heirs, salary and allowance payable for the then current month and other dues together with
such further sum as the Board or Compensation Committee of the Board, inits sole and uncontrolled

discretion, may determine.
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The Board considers that the remuneration proposed to be paid to Mr. Kampani upon his appointment as
Managing Director is commensurate with his duties and responsibilities as Managing Director. The approval
of the Members is being sought for Mr. Kampani's appointment as Managing Director and to the above
remuneration proposed to be paid to him pursuant to Sections 198, 269, 309, 316 and other applicable

provisions of the Act read with Schedule XllI thereto.

The above terms and conditions may also be deemed to be an abstract of the draft Agreement between the

Company and Mr.Kampaniinaccordance with Section 302 of the Act.

A copy of the draft Agreement will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company

between 3.00 p.m.and 5.00 p.m. onany working day (Monday to Friday).
The Board commends passing of the special resolution proposedatitem no. 7 of the Notice.

Mr. Nimesh N Kampani is interested in the above resolution since it relates to his own appointment as
Managing Director and the remuneration proposed to be paid to him as such. Mr. Ashith N Kampani,
brother of Mr. Nimesh N Kampani, may also be deemed to be concerned or interested in the above

resolution.
Itemno. 8

At the Twenty First Annual General Meeting held on September 7, 2006 the Members had approved, by a
special resolution, the payment of commission to all Non-Executive Directors of the Company up to 1% of
the net profits for each of the five financial years commencing April |, 2006, such commission to be
computed under and in accordance with Section 198 read with Section 309 of the Companies Act, 1956
(“the Act”); the amount of commission and manner of its payment to be determined by the Board of
Directors (“the Board”) from time to time. The Members had also authorised the Board to pay, with the
approval of the Central Government, commission in excess of | % but not exceeding 3% of the net profits of

the Company for each of the aforesaid five financial years.

The Board at its meeting held on May 28, 2008 has decided to pay, subject to the approval of the Members in

the general meeting:

() commission not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the Company with respect to each of the five
financial years commencing April I,2007 to all Non-Executive Directors where the Company has a
Managing or Whole-time Director or Manager; such commission to be computed on the net profitsin

the mannerlaid downin Sections 198 and 309 of the Act, and

(b) commission not exceeding 3% of the net profits of the Company if the Company does not have a
Managing or Whole-time Director or Manager in respect of each of the aforesaid five financial years,
such commission to be computed on the net profits in the manner laid down in Sections 198 and 309
ofthe Act.
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In either of the aforesaid cases, the amount of commission and the manner of its payment would be

determined by the Board from time to time.

The special resolution also seeks the authority of the Members to the Board to pay, with the approval of the
Central Government, commission in excess of 1% or 3% of the net profits, as the case may be, pursuant to
Section 309(4) of the Act.

The special resolution at item no.8 of the Notice if passed will be in supersession of the special resolution

passed at the aforesaid Twenty-First Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 7,2006.
The Board commends the passing of the special resolution proposed atitem no.8 of the Notice.

All the Directors of the Company except Mr. Nimesh N Kampani may be deemed to be concerned or
interested in the resolution to the extent of the commission that may be paid to them in terms

thereof.
Itemno.9

The present face value of the equity shares of the Company is Rs.10/- (Rupees ten). With a view to enhance the
liquidity in the equity shares and widen the shareholders base of the Company, it is proposed to sub-divide each
equity share of the face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees ten) in the existing equity share capital of the Company into 10
equity shares of the face value of Re. /- (Rupee one) per share. As per Article 9 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, such a proposal requires a resolution to be passed at the general meeting. Hence the resolution at

itemno.9.

The Members of the Company at the Twenty Second Annual General Meeting held on September 6, 2007
had approved the Employee Stock Option Scheme. The Compensation Committee of the Directors is

authorised toadminister and superintend the above mentioned scheme.

In terms of the SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines,
1999 and under the above mentioned scheme, the Compensation Committee is required to make a fair and
reasonable adjustments in a manner as provided in the said guidelines to the number of options or to the

exercise priceatthe time of corporateactions.

If the resolution for sub-division of shares is approved by Members, the Board and / or the Compensation
Committee may, if deemed fit, make fair and reasonable adjustments to the number of options and / or

exercise price for the options granted.

The Board of Directors commends the passing of the special resolution proposed at item no.9 of the

Notice.
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Itemnos.10to 12

As the Members are aware, the present authorised share capital of the Company is Rs.50 crore divided into
5,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each. The present issued and paid up equity share capital of the

CompanyisRs.30crore.

Itis proposed toincrease the paid up equity share capital of the Company by capitalising such sum standing to
the credit of the Company's securities premium account, as may be required for issue of bonus shares in the
ratio of three equity shares for every two equity shares held. The consent of the Members is being sought by

theresolutionatitemno. |3 of the Notice for the proposed bonus issue.

Itis therefore proposedtoincrease the authorised share capital of the Company from Rs.50 crore to Rs. 100

crore.Hence, theresolutionatitemno.|0.

The resolution at item no.l | of the Notice is for alteration of first sentence of Clause V of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company to reflect the sub-division of equity shares and the increase
in the authorised share capital. It is a necessary consequence of the resolutions at item nos. 9 and 10 of

the Notice.

The resolution at item no. |2 is for alteration of Article 3 of the Company's Articles of Association so as
to reflect the authorised share capital of the Company and is also a necessary consequence of the
resolutions atitem nos. 9and |10 of the Notice. Section 3| of the Companies Act, 1956 requires a special
resolution for alteration of the Articles of Association of the Company and hence the resolution

atitemno. | 2.

A copy of the Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association will be available for inspection at
the registered office of the Company between 3.00 p.m. and 5.00 p.m. on any working day
(Monday to Friday).

The Board of Directors commends the passing of the resolutions proposed at item nos.10 to 12
ofthe Notice.

Itemno. I3

Consistent with the objective behind the resolution at item no. 9 above, the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on May 28, 2008 decided to issue bonus shares subject to the approval of the Members at the
general meeting. The ratio of the bonus issue is set out in the text of the resolution at item no. 13. The
consent of the Members is being sought for the issue of bonus shares in terms of the special resolution set

outatitemno. |3 pursuantto Article | 77 of the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Members of the Company at the Twenty Second Annual General Meeting held on September 6, 2007
had approved the Employee Stock Option Scheme. The Compensation Committee of the Board of

Directorsisauthorised toadminister and superintend the above mentioned scheme.
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In terms of the SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines,
1999 and under the above mentioned scheme, the Compensation Committee is required to make a fair and
reasonable adjustments in a manner as provided in the said guidelines to the number of options or to the

exercise priceat the time of corporateactions.

If issue of bonus shares is approved by Members, the Board and / or the Compensation Committee may, if

deemed fit, make fair and reasonable adjustments to the number of options granted.
The bonus shares shall rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares of the Company.

The Board of Directors commends the passing of the special resolution proposed at item no.|3 of the

Notice.

The Directors of the Company may be said to be interested in the above resolution to the extent of the

bonus shares that may beissuedandallotted to them in pursuance ofitem no. | 3 of the Notice.

By Order of the Board

P K Choksi
Group Head - Compliance & Legal
& Company Secretary

Date: May 28,2008

Registered office:
141, Maker Chamberslll
Nariman Point
Mumbai-400021
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Directors' Report

Tothe Members,

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present the Twenty Third Annual Report together with
theaudited annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31,2008.

Financial results (Rs. in crore)
For the year ended
. March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
Particulars 2008 2007 2008 2007
Consolidated Standalone
Gross income 742.29 444.05 36.70 39.38
Profit before depreciation, interest & tax 334.81 197.91 28.93 35.76
Less: Depreciation 9.79 7.04 0.10 0.03
Interest 32.83 7.84 0.06 -
Provision on standard assets 12.04 0.09 - -
Add: Exceptional item 1509.60 - 1723.02 -
Profit before tax 1789.75 182.94 1751.79 35.73
Provision for tax 454.11 59.27 391.55 0.41
Provision for fringe benefit tax .42 0.76 0.07 #
Profit after tax but before minority
interest and share in associate companies 1334.22 122.91 1360.17 35.31
Less: Share of minority interest 9.84 28.73 - -
Share of Profit / (Loss) in associate companies (17.32) (3.31) - -
Net profit 1307.06 90.87 1360.17 35.31
Add: Profit brought forward from earlier years 165.30 108.38 37.97 24.01
Less: Adjustments as per AS |5 and others 0.83 - - -
Profit available for appropriation 1471.53 199.25 1398.14 59.32
Appropriations
Proposed dividend
Normal 15.00 15.00 15.00 15.00
Special 60.00 - 60.00 -
Dividend tax 12.83 5.40 12.75 2.55
General reserve 150.00 8.70 150.00 3.80
Statutory reserve 13.15 - - -
Debenture redemption reserve (4.85) 4.85 - -
Balance carried to balance sheet 1225.40 165.30 1160.39 37.97
1471.53 199.25 1398.14 59.32

# Below Rs. 50,000/-
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Dividend

Your Directors are pleased to recommend the payment of dividend of 250% (Rs. 25/- per share) for the year
ended March 31, 2008 including a special dividend of 200% (Rs. 20/- per share), considering an exceptional
income during the year being the profit on sale of 49% equity stake held by your Company in Morgan Stanley
India Company Private Limited (formerly known as JM Morgan Stanley Securities Private Limited) to Morgan
Stanley. The payment of dividend together with tax thereon will absorb Rs. 87.75 crore. The dividend, if
declared at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, will be paid on July 29,2008 to those Members whose
names appear in the Register of Members on July 18, 2008. With respect to shares that are held in the
dematerialised form, it will be paid to those Members whose names are furnished by the depositories as the

beneficial ownersas on the said date.
Sub-division ofshares

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on May 28, 2008, has decided to sub-divide the existing equity
shares of the face value of Rs.10/- each in the share capital of your Company into 10 equity shares of the face
value of Re.|/- each subject to the approval of the Members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

If the sub-division of equity shares is approved by the Members, the fresh shares of Re. |/- each will be
issued /credited in the respective beneficiary accounts to / of the Members, whose names appear in the
Register of Members and / or furnished by the depositories as the beneficial owners on the Record Date to
befixed by the Board of Directors in this regard.

Issue of bonus sharesandincreaseinauthorised capital

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on May 28, 2008, has decided to issue fully paid up bonus shares
to the Members of the Company in the ratio of 3 (three) equity shares for every 2 (two) equity shares held by
the Members, by capitalising an amount of Rs. 45 crore from the securities premium account of the
Company. The issue of the bonus shares will be subject to the approval of the Members at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

If the bonus issue is approved by the Members, the bonus shares will be issued / credited in the respective
beneficiary accounts to / of the Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members and / or furnished by
the depositories as beneficial owners on the Record Date to be fixed by the Board of Directors in this regard.

To facilitate the issue of additional shares resulting from the bonus issue, your Directors propose an
increasein the authorised share capital of the Company from Rs. 50 crore to Rs. 100 crore.

Financial highlights

On a consolidated basis and before exceptional item, your Company earned a gross income of Rs. 742.29
crore (previous year - Rs. 444.05 crore) and a profit before tax of Rs. 280.15 crore (previous year -
Rs. 182.94 crore) during the year under review.

The profitbefore tax and minority interest and share of profit/loss in associate companies after considering
the exceptionalitemis Rs. |,789.75 crore. The profit after tax, minority interest and the share of profit/ loss



JM FINANCIAL

in associate companies is Rs. 1,307.06 crore. The earnings per share, after considering the exceptional item
onthenumber of shares outstanding at the year endis Rs. 435.69 per share.

On astandalone basis, your Company earned a lower gross income of Rs. 36.70 crore during the year under
review asagainstRs. 39.38 crorein the previous year. After the inclusion of the gain resulting from the sale of
the shares in Morgan Stanley India Company Private Limited to Morgan Stanley, treated as an exceptional
income, the profit before tax aggregates to Rs. 1,751.79 crore and the profit after tax stands at Rs. 1,360.17
crore. The earnings per share, on the shares outstanding at the year end, is Rs. 9.59 per share before the
exceptional item and Rs. 453.39 per share after the exceptional item. The networth of your Company at the
yearendstandsatRs. |,653.44 crorei.e.,atRs.551.15 pershare.

Resolution through the postal ballot

The Members passed an ordinary resolution under Section 293(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 for
contributing to charitable and other funds through the postal ballot pursuant to Section 192A of the
Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies (Passing of the Resolution by Postal Ballot) Rules, 2001. The
result of the said postal ballot was announced on March 14,2008.

Your Company has complied with the procedures for the postal ballot in terms of the aforesaid rules and
amendments thereto.

Employeesstockoptionscheme

The Compensation Committee, at its meeting held on December 27, 2007, granted 4,45,500 equity
stock options to the employees / Directors of the Company and its subsidiary(ies). The options
granted, as aforesaid, were subsequently cancelled by the Compensation Committee at its meeting
held on March 29,2008 after consideringall the relevant factors.

The Compensation Committee, at its meeting held on April 15, 2008 granted 4,45,500 fresh stock
options to the employees / Directors of the Company and its subsidiary(ies). These options are granted
atan exercise price of Rs.1,370/- per option, based on the closing price of the shares of your Company on
the National Stock Exchange of India Limited on the day of the meeting of the Compensation Committee
and shall be vested in the concerned employees / Directors in three tranches at the end of third, fourth
and fifth year from the date of grant.

Jointventure

Following the termination of the joint venture between JM Financial and Morgan Stanley, your Company
acquired 49% equity stake held by Morgan Stanley in JM Financial Consultants Private Limited, engaged in the
investment banking business (along with its wholly-owned subsidiaries engaged in securities business).
Consequently, JM Financial Consultants Private Limited has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of your
Company. Further, your Company sold its 49% equity holding in the joint venture engaged in the
institutional securities business, namely, Morgan Stanley India Company Private Limited (formerly known as
JM Morgan Stanley Securities Private Limited) to Morgan Stanley.
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In order to have a continued presence in the institutional securities business, your Company, through its
wholly-owned subsidiary namely, JM Financial Consultants Private Limited, entered into a joint venture
with the ASK Group and acquired 60% equity stake in ASK Securities India Private Limited (now known
as JM Financial ASK Securities Private Limited), which is a trading member of the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited and Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and has a presence in the institutional
securities & research business.

Your Company continues to cater to institutional investors, both domestic and offshore, and continues to
provide research-based broking services to its institutional clients through JM Financial ASK Securities
Private Limited.

JM Financial Consultants Private Limited has further acquired the balance 40% equity stake in JM Financial
ASK Securities Private Limited from ASK Group on May 9,2008. Consequently, JM Financial ASK Securities
Private Limited became a wholly-owned subsidiary of JM Financial Consultants Private Limited. On receipt
of the relevant regulatory approvals, the name of '|M Financial ASK Securities Private Limited' will be
changed to '|M Financial Institutional Securities Private Limited'.

Managementdiscussion and analysis

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report for the financial year 2007-08, as stipulated under Clause
49 of the Listing Agreement(s) with the Stock Exchange(s), is given in a separate section forming part of the
Annual Report.

Your Company'sbusinessinterests

Your Company, through its subsidiaries, joint venture and associates, forms an integrated financial services
group providing a wide range of services to a significant clientele that includes corporates, financial
institutions, high net-worth individuals and retail investors. Your Company has business interests in
investment banking, institutional and non-institutional securities trading and research, wealth management,
mutual fund asset management, alternative asset management and securities financing and investing; all of
which have been described in detail in the management discussion and analysis.

Investmentin operating subsidiaries

Your Company invested in the capital of the following operating subsidiaries in addition to the acquisition of
JM Financial ASK Securities Private Limited as described above:

° Rs.86.95 crore foracquisition of 8,69,50,000 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- each for cash at
par in JM Financial Asset Reconstruction Company Private Limited. The investment as above
currently represents 49% of the paid up share capital of Asset Reconstruction Company.

o Rs. 400 crore foracquisition of 3,20,00,000 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- each for cash ata
premium of Rs. [15/- per share in JM Financial Products Private Limited. Your Company also
converted |,15,00,000 optionally convertible preference shares into equity shares and received
49,50,00,000 equity shares as bonus shares from JM Financial Products Private Limited.
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® Rs. 301 croreforacquisition of 86,00,000 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- each for cash at
a premium of Rs. 340/- per share in JM Financial Ventures Limited. Consequently, JM Financial
Ventures Limited has become a subsidiary of your Company.

® Rs. 279.49 crore for acquisition of 1,59,71,000 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- each for cash
atapremium of Rs. 1 65/- per shareinJMFinancial Consultants Private Limited.

L] Rs. 90 crore for acquisition of 90,00,000 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- each for cash at a
premium of Rs. 90/- per share in JM Financial Asset Management Private Limited.

Sale ofsharesin operating subsidiaries

During 2007-08, besides the sale of shares in Morgan Stanley India Company Private Limited as described
above, your Company soldsharesin the following operating subsidiaries:

L Its entire holding of 50,00,000 equity shares and 25,00,000 preference shares in JM Financial
Commtrade Limited to JM Financial Services Private Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
JM Financial Consultants Private Limited.

] Your Company transferred / sold 5,44,50,000 equity shares representing 10% of the equity share
capital of JM Financial Products Private Limited to JM Financial Group Employees' Welfare Trust for
allocating the equity shares, based on the share purchase options granted, from time to time, to the
employeesand Directors of the companies belonging to JM Financial Group.

Fixed deposits

Your Company has notaccepted any fixed deposits from the Members/public during the year under review.
Directors'responsibility statement

In pursuance of Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Directors confirm that:

® in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and
thereare no material departures from the same;

° they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of your Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of your
Company for that period;

® they have taken proper and sufficient care for maintainingadequate accounting records inaccordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventingand detectingfraud and otherirregularities;

L they have prepared theannual accounts onagoing concern basis.
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Directors

Inaccordance with Article 130 of the Articles of Association of the Company read with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956, Mr.E AKshirsagarand Mr.D E Udwadia, retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meetingand being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Article |17, Mr. Paul
Zuckerman was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from October 29, 2007.
He holds office as a Director up to the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Your Company

has receivedanotice in writingfroma Member proposing his candidature for the office of Director.

The required resolutions appointing the above Directors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting are

includedin the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Dilip Kothari resigned from the Directorship of the Company with effect from May 28, 2008. The Board
of Directors placed on record its sincere appreciation for the valuable services rendered by Mr. Kothari

duringhis tenureasaDirector of the Company.

Your Directors appointed Mr. Nimesh N Kampani as Managing Director of the Company for the period
commencing from May 28, 2008 to March 31,201 |, on the terms and conditions, including remuneration as
setoutinthe Notice which forms part of the Annual Report.

Particulars regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange
earnings and expenditure

The particulars as required under the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Board of
Directors) Rules, 1988 on conservation of energy and technology absorption are not applicable to your
Company, since it is not a manufacturing company. During the year under review, your Company has not
earned any foreign exchange and the details of the amount spentin foreign exchange is provided in note |9 of
the Notes to Accounts which forms part of the Annual Report.

Corporate governance

Thereporton compliance with the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement executed with the Bombay
Stock Exchange Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited is given separately in the Annual
Report. A certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Company M/s. Khimji Kunverji & Co. confirming
compliance with the conditions of the said Clause 49 is annexed to the Corporate Governance Report.

Auditors

The retiringauditors, namely, M/s. Khimji Kunverji & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, hold office until
the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM) and are seeking their appointment.
Members are requested to consider their appointment and authorise the Board of Directors to fix their
remuneration for the year 2008-09.
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The Statutory Auditors have confirmed that their appointment, if made, at the AGM, will be within the limits
prescribed under sub-section (IB) of Section 224 of the Companies Act, 1956 and that they are not
beneficially holdingany security of the Company as defined under Section 226(3)(e) of the said Act.

Internal auditors

Your Company has appointed an independent audit firm namely, M/s. Aneja Associates, Chartered
Accountants, Mumbai, as Internal Auditors for evaluating the adequacy of all internal controls and
ensuring adherence to internal processes and procedures as well as to regulatory and other legal

requirements.
Transfer ofunpaid/unclaimed dividends/interest

The amount of dividends and interest on debentures which remained unpaid / unclaimed for a period of
seven years has been transferred by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund pursuant
to the provisions of Section 205A(5) of the Companies Act, 1956.

Subsidiary companies

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has granted exemption to your Company under Section 212(8) of the
Companies Act, 1956 with regard to attaching the Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and other
documents of the subsidiaries for the year ended March 31, 2008. However, the accounts of the
subsidiaries will be made available for inspection to any Member of the Company at its registered office
and also at the registered office of the respective subsidiaries and a copy of the same will be made
available to the Members on receipt of a request from them. The financial information of subsidiary
companies is disclosed along with the consolidated financial statements. In accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Agreement(s) with Stock Exchange(s), the consolidated financial statements
of the Company together with its subsidiaries are annexed to the Annual Report.

Particulars ofemployees

The information required under Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies
(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975, is given in the annexure and forms part of this Report. Your
Company had thirteen employees as on March 31, 2008. Out of the total number of employees, two
employees employed throughout the year were in receipt of remuneration of more than Rs. 24.00 lakh per
annum and one employee employed for part of the year was in receipt of remuneration of more than Rs. 2.00
lakh per month.

However, in accordance with Section 219(1)(b)(iv) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Report and Accounts
are being sent to the Members excluding the aforesaid annexure. Any Member interested in obtaininga copy
ofthe said annexure may write to the Company Secretary at the registered office of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Economicscenario

The Indian economy continued to expand at a robust pace during the year 2007-08 for the fifth
consecutive year with real GDP growth rate at 8.7% although a little lower than that of 9.6%in 2006-07,
reflecting moderation in growth in all the three sectors, viz., agriculture and allied activities, industry
and services. Notwithstanding the moderation, the growth was in line with the average real GDP
growth of 8.7% per annum over thefive year period (2003-04 to 2007-08). During the year, the index of
industrial production (lIP) rose by 8.7% compared to 11.2% during 2006-07. The manufacturing sector
recorded a growth of 9.1% compared to 12.2% during 2006-07 whereas the growth in infrastructure

sector was placedat5.6% compared to 8.7% during 2006-07.

The services sector maintained its double-digit growth at 10.6% despite some moderation in pace. It
continued to be the major contributor to the GDP growth. The rise in the number of inbound tourists,
revenue generated through railway freight traffic, commercial vehicles production, new cellular phone
connections, passengers handled by civil aviation at Indian airports was moderate as compared to the
previous year.

Inflation based on the wholesale price index (WPI) softened from 6.4% at the beginning of the fiscal year
to a low of 3.1% on October |3, 2007 before increasing again to 7.4% by March 29, 2008, mainly
reflecting hardening of prices of primary articles, fuels group and some manufactured products.

The US dollar depreciated against major currencies in the international markets during 2007-08,
reflecting the effect of the US sub-prime crisis, fed funds rate cuts and lower than expected
economic activity. The US dollar touched a historic low against the Euro, British pound sterling and
Japanese yen in the last two quarters of 2007-08 depreciating by 5.8 % against the Euro, 1.5 %
against British pound sterling and 14.9 % against Japanese yen. Among Asian currencies, the US
dollar depreciated by 9.3 % against Chinese yuan, 10.2 % against Thai baht; but appreciated by 5.5 %
against the South Korean won and 7.7% against the Indian rupee. Depreciation of the US dollar
against the Indian rupee impacted the performance of several export oriented industries including
textilesand IT &IT enabled services.

During the year, interest rates softened in the first three quarters of the year but towards February
2008, the markets experienced liquidity tightening, which was seen as the regular “March” effect when

banks become largest borrowers themselves on account of the year-end loan disbursement. The
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benchmark prime lending rates (BPLRs) of public and private sector banks were placed in the range of
12.25-13.50% and 13.00-16.50%, respectively, in March 2008 as compared to 12.25-12.75% and 12.00-
16.50%, respectively, in March 2007.

During the first quarter of the year 2007-08, government bond yields increased in major advanced
economies, reflecting higher short-term rates and upward revision in growth expectations. Long-term
government bond yields, however, softened in the subsequent part of the year, reflecting lower investor
appetite for riskier assets in the wake of deterioration in the housing market, turbulence in the credit market
and moderation of the monetary policy in the United States of America (US). The yield on the 0-year
government paper declined by 120 basis points in the US, 49 basis points in the United Kingdom, 41 basis
pointsin Japanand | 6 basis pointsin the Euro region.

Brief spells of volatility were also observed in money markets in India on account of changes in capital flows
and cash balances of the Central Government with the Reserve Bank of India. During the year, interest rates
in the money markets remained generally within the informal corridor set by reverse repo and repo rates.

Corporate India continued its healthy performance, although it witnessed some moderation in growth ona
relative basis and an increase on an absolute basis which was backed by strong domestic consumption-led
demand caused by increased disposable income. Indian corporates have started reaping the benefits of their
investments and capital expenditure incurred by them in last few years by way of capacity expansion,
technological upgradation and modernisation in gaining global competitiveness, improved efficiencies and
increased economies of scale. The performance of non-government non-financial companies moderated
during 2007-08 (up to December 2007) relative to the previous year with sales growth during the first nine
months of 2007-08 at 17.4% was lower than 29.1% in the corresponding period of the previous year. Net
profits grew at 29.8% as compared to 46.6% a year ago due to a combination of several factors such as high
interestrates, riseininput costsand compensation to employees.

Structurally, high growth in India is driven by favourable demographics, strong capex cycle and productivity
growth. The strong capex cycle in turn is led by the boom in infrastructure. The Xlth Plan projection for
infrastructure spends is estimated at about US$ 500 billion. This should encourage a robust economic
growth and drive corporate earnings. The Indian corporate world continued its spree of multibillion dollar
acquisitions abroad in its quest to gain global scale and competitiveness. Outward investment from India
shot up to US$ 14.4 billion in 2006-07 from less than US$ 2 billion in the period 2003-04. The trend
continued during 2007-08 as well with acquisitions of the size of US$ 44.9 billion.

The Union Budget 2008 went a step ahead in providing a thrust to the overall economic growth in the
country. Most of the proposals put forth in the Finance Bill were targeted towards reducing inflation,
improving consumption-led demand by increasing the disposable income of the masses with complete focus
onfiscal prudence. The modification in threshold limits for exemption of personal income tax and reduction
in duties for industrial sector are some of the major proposals which will help in providing impetus to the
overall economic growth in the country.
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Real estate prices continued to remain strong in high demand locations including Mumbai and other cities
due to the lack of quality supply. Significant private and public market capital also became available to
developers during the year. However, some of the cities with excess supply have witnessed price

correctionsand reduction in demand.
The Indian capital markets witnessed several regulatory changes. Some of the significant changes are:

L] Introduction of Fast TrackIssues (FTIs) - SEBl has allowed well-established and compliant listed
companies satisfying certain specified eligibility criteria to access the Indian primary market via the
FTlrouteinatime effective manner for follow-on public offerings and rights' issues.

® Amendments to Guidelines for Issue of Indian Depository Receipts (IDRs) - which, apart
from allowing all categories of investors to apply in IDR issues, subject to certain conditions, also
eased the norms for theissuer companiesintending to bringan IDR issue.

o Issue of Offshore Derivative Instruments (ODIs) - Vide a circular issued by SEBI, Foreign
Institutional Investors (Flls) were required to wind up their positions in excess of the prescribed
reduced ODIs exposure over |8 months (from October 2007). Further, Flls and their sub-accounts
were directed not to issue / renew ODIs with underlying as derivatives. Flls with notional value of
ODls outstanding (excluding derivatives) in excess of 40% of their assets under custody in India were
directed to issue fresh ODlIs only against cancellation / redemption / closing out of the existing ODls
of at least equivalent amount. SEBI also gave a commitment to expedite Fll registration process. This
rule, coupled with the impact of global financial sector meltdown impacted the volume of Fll trades
overthe subsequent months.

o Differential Pricing - This measure permitted companies to make public issues to retail investors
atadiscounted price, subject toa maximum price differential of 10%.

o Number of centres for Electronic Clearing Service (ECS) in public / rights issues - The
facility of refund through ECS in public / rights issues was increased to 68 centres, thus resulting in a

faster refund procedure.

Global financial markets remained volatile during 2007-08 as the crises of US sub-prime mortgage
market and other credit markets exposures deepened and spilled over to markets for other assets.
Indian financial markets remained orderly for the most part during the year 2007-08, barring the equity
market, which witnessed bouts of volatility, especially beginning second week of January 2008 in tandem
with trends in major international equity markets. During the year, the Sensex touched an all time high of
21,206 on January 10, 2008, however it slipped to 15,644 at the end of FY 2007-08, on account of the US
sub-prime mortgage crisis, still registering an overall growth of 19.7% over the previous year (FY 2006-
07) level of 13,072.

Strongsecondary markets helped Indian corporates to raisearecordamount of Rs. 1,65,592 crore as capital
through domestic and overseas issuances registering a growth of 133% over the previous year. The amount
mobilised through domestic issuances grew to a record Rs.l,10,508 crore and that mobilised through
overseasissuance grew to Rs. 55,084 croreregisteringa robust growth of 228% and 47% respectively.
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The detailed break-up of funds raised by Indian corporates is given below:

2007-08 2006-07 Growthin

No. | Rs.incrore | No. | Rs.incrore| Amount(%)

Domesticlssues

Initial Public Offer (IPO) 84 41,323 76 23,706 74
Follow on Public Offer (FPO) 6 10,896 9 1,287 747
Qualified Institutional Placement (QIP) 38 25,708 25 4963 418
Rights Issue 30 32,519 38 3,704 778
Sub Total 158 110,446 148 33,660 -

Overseaslssues

American Depository Receipts (ADR) 3 21,051 2 8,196 157
Global Depository Receipts (GDR) 29 9,825 21 4,051 143
Foreign Currency Convertible Bond (FCCB) 59 24,208 70 25,120 -4
Sub Total 9l 55,084 93 37,367 -
Grand Total 249 165,530 24| 71,027 -

Foreign Inflows were strong during the early part of year showing increasing investor appetite in Indian
markets. Flls invested US$ 12.7 billion in the Indian stock markets during 2007-08 as compared to US$ 5.7
billion during 2006-07. Between April |,2007 and January 8,2008, Flls invested US$ 16.3 billion in the Indian
stock markets. However, Flls made net sales of US$ 3.6 billion between January 9,2008 and March 31, 2008.
During the period April 2007 to February 2008, the inflows under Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) were
US$ 25.5 billionas compared to US$ 9.6 billion in the corresponding period of the previous year.

The Mutual Fund industry continues to demonstrate double digit growth on account of increasing
disposable income and interest from retail and institutional investors. The net mobilisation of resources by
mutual funds increased by 63.6% to Rs.1,53,802 crore over the previous year. About 67.5% of net
mobilisation of funds by mutual funds during the year was under income/debt market-oriented schemes, out
of which bulk of the resources were mobilised through debt other than assured return schemes. Growth-
oriented schemes accounted for 30.5% of net resource mobilisation during 2007-08. Net investments from
mutual funds in the equity capital market were Rs. 12,187 crore, representing growth of 44% as compared to
thatin FY 2006-07 of Rs. 8,479 crore.

Mobilisation of capital through private placement increased by 34.9% to Rs.1,49,651 crore during 2007-
08. Resources mobilised under this route by private and public sector entities increased by 49.4% and
15.5%, respectively. Financial intermediaries (both from public as well as private sectors) accounted for
the bulk (68.3%) of the total resource mobilisation from the private placement market (69% during the
previousyear).
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During 2007-08 (April-December), inflows (net) under external commercial borrowings (ECBs) amounted
to US$ 16.3 billion (US$ 9.8 billion during April-December 2006). Non Resident Indian deposits registered
a net inflow of US$ 0.106 billion during the year 2007-08 (April-February) as compared to net inflows of
US$ 3.9 billion during the corresponding period of the previous year.

However, high inflation and soaring oil prices are major threats which could affect the overall growth of the
Indian economy. Apart from high inflation, cyclical challenges also emanate from the global slowdown and

political uncertainty.
(Source: RBlreports, Bloomberg, Prime Database & SEBI)

Our businesses

JM Financial is a leading provider of capital market services to Indian and global corporates, institutional and
government clients. The corporate structure of the Company is that of a business holding company with
businesses housed in several operating subsidiary companies.

The operating businesses of the Company are divided in the following segments:
Investment banking and securities business

We provide advisory and execution services of diverse nature to corporates, institutions, governments and
government-owned corporations, banks and High Net-worth Individuals (HNIs).

We offer wealth advisory services to HNIs with a focus on asset allocation and bring the best of the ideas to
our clients through an open architecture platform. We also distribute third party financial products to retail
investors through a large network of Independent Financial Advisors.

Securitiesfunding and fund based activities

We provide financing against securities to a diverse range of corporate and non-corporate clients. We are
also engaged in the business of identifying, acquiring and selling down debt assets through a range of
structured products.

Alternative asset management

We manage funds of institutional and large non-institutional investors raised under various schemes for
investments under mandated charter such as Private Equity Fund, Real Estate Fund and proposed Special
Situations Fund.

Asset management

We manage mutual fund assets raised through several schemes offering a range of investment options to a
large number of investors.
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Business discussion

Theyear2007-08 was a year of significant events in the history of JM Financial.

Following the termination of joint venture between JM Financial and Morgan Stanley, the Company acquired
49% equity stake in investment banking business along with its wholly owned subsidiaries, from Morgan
Stanley. The Company also sold its 49% equity stake in institutional equity business to Morgan Stanley. The
Company acquired majority control in an institutional equity trading and research platform to address the
gap in the suite of capital market services left by the termination of the joint venture with Morgan Stanley.
The efforts undertaken to consolidate the asset management and alternative asset management businesses
of the Company also began to reflect the results this year. The Company capitalised its various businesses
through capital infusion in respective companies including the non banking financial company. This will help
these businesses to further consolidate their positions.

The financial performance of the Company is presented in the standalone as well as consolidated
statements. Given the corporate structure of a holding company, the consolidated financials represent the
complete picture of the businesses of the Company. In the financial performance for the year 2007-08, profit
on sale of equity shares in the erstwhile joint venture company, Morgan Stanley India Company Private
Limited (formerly known as JM Morgan Stanley Securities Private Limited) to Morgan Stanley is presented as
an exceptional income to facilitate an understandingand comparison of operating performance.

Investment banking and securities business

The strong growth in the Indian economy and continued improvement in fundamentals of corporate India
resulted in yetanother buoyantyear for the Indian capital markets and the investment bankingand securities
business.

Thefocus of the companies during 2007-08 was on consolidating their leadership position in these businesses as
a full fledged Indian investment banking and securities outfit. Investment banking was engaged as the book
running lead manager and advisor to most of the large and landmark transactions including IPOs - Reliance
Power (Rs. 10,123 crore), Mundra Port (Rs. 1,771 crore) and Future Capital Holdings (Rs. 491 crore); FPO -
ICICI Bank (Rs. 10,040 crore); Rights Issue - Tata Steel (Rs.9,135 crore); QIP - GMR Infrastructure (Rs. 3,966
crore), Suzlon Energy (Rs. 2,183 crore); Preferential Allotment- Jai Corp. (Rs. 585 crore).

On the mergers & acquisitions side, investment banking acted as an advisor in landmark deals including the
acquisition of Centurion Bank of Punjab by HDFC Bank (Rs.| 1,267 crore), formation of the joint venture
between Eicher Motors and Ab Volvo (Rs.1,082 crore) and the acquisition of 51% stake in Sesa Goa by
Vedanta (Rs. 4,087 crore).

Theinvestmentbankingbusiness won following awards:

® “Best India Deal” in 2007 Finance Asia Achievement Awards for Vodafone's US$ 12 billion acquisition of
Hutch Telecom.

o "Best Secondary Offering" in 2007 Finance Asia Achievement Awards and "Best Follow-on Offering”
in The Asset Triple A Regional Awards for the US$ 4.94 billion ICICI Bank follow-on offering.
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Investment banking was also adjudged as one of the Top 50 companies out of 250 companies which
participated in the survey viz., “Best Workplace in India Study — 2008” conducted by Great Place to Work
Institute in partnership with Economic Times. The five parameters used in the survey are Credibility,

Fairness, Respect, Camaraderieand Pride.

The institutional equities business was enhanced on the new joint venture platform with active participation
in placement of several IPOs, FPOs, QIPs, preferential allotments and block trades, new clients empanelment
and increased activity in secondary market trades as well as expanded research coverage. The core teams in all
business functions were expanded in line with the business plans of rapid build up and expansion.

Theinvestmentadvisory business continued to focus on secondary equity, distribution of financial products and
wealth management services (corporate and private). High net-worth online trading commenced during the
year.ltmaintained the CRISIL rating of P| + for short term debt programme for asignificantly increased amount.

The Assets Under Management (AUM) under the investment advisory business grew to Rs. 16,292 crore
duringtheyear.

The investment advisory business opened five new branches in Tier | cities taking the total number of
branches to 21. It helped in expanding its independent financial advisors group reach. The total mutual fund
AUMs mobilised and catered to by us grew to Rs. 17,377 crore for the year. The investment advisory
business was ranked No. 2 by Prime Database for IPO distribution with mobilisation of Rs.14,624 crore
through 2.1 lakh applications during the year. This represents amarketshare of [2.31%.

The fixed income business obtained the rights as a Trading Member (Deposit Based Member) of the Bombay
Stock Exchange Limited.

The commodities broking business continued with its initiative to build a strong commodities research and
trading platform. The team of research professionals covers a wide spectrum of commodities including
bullion, base metals, crude and soft commodities such as sugar, soy complex, pulses and spices. With most
corporates expressing constraint due to the possibility of a ban on some essential commodities, the market
continues to be dominated by retailand HNI participants.

Securities funding and fund based activities

During 2007-08, this business has grown three fold as compared to last year. The gross income of NBFC
during the year was Rs. 94 crore as against Rs. 27 crore in the previous year. Financing was undertaken in 40
IPOs aggregating Rs. 12,650 crore as against Rs. 1,81 | crore during the previous year. The average margin
funding book duringthe year was Rs. 784 crore as compared to Rs. 225 crore during the previous year.

We identified single corporate loan securitisation as a key fund based activity involving issuance of a series of
pass through certificates. We completed five tranches of such transactions with minimal continuing capital
commitment.

Following the capital infusion in this business, it maintained the short-term debt rating of P1 + as assigned by
CRISIL even after a substantial enhancement in limits to Rs. 5,500 crore on episodic basis of which the
component of steady-state borrowing limitis Rs. 2,400 crore.
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Alternative asset management

JMFinancial India Fund, a private equity fund, was closed with a corpus of US$ 225 million in April 2007. The fund
is a broad-based, multi-sector fund that seeks to invest in companies that can leverage the domestic
consumption story and the outsourcing opportunity in India. During the year, the fund completed five
investments, investing about 40% of the AUM in companies engaged in the businesses of high-end fashion retail,
auto components, farm equipment, financial services and knowledge process outsourcing (KPO) sectors.

JM Financial Property Fund, a fund registered with SEBI as a venture capital fund is managed by Infinite India
Investment Management Private Limited (Infinite), a 50:50 joint venture between JM Financial Limited and
SRS Private Investment Management LLC.

Infinite acts as manager / advisor in relation to assets worth US$ 500 million spread across domestic, foreign
and co-investment assets. These funds are deployed in |2 investments in commerecial, residential, retail and
hospitality assets as well as real estate development companies.

Infinite is active in Mumbai, New Delhi, Chennai, Bangalore, Kolkata, Hyderabad and emerging Tier Il cities,
where it has made entity level as well as project level investments. In each of its investments, Infinite has
either partnered with the leading regional market player or has the strategic advantage of investing in prime
assets in the concerned city.

As part of our plan to grow our alternative investments business, the Company invested Rs. 301 crorein a new
group described as special situations fund, which will aim to make investments in companies which we believe
have superior long term return prospects and ones which would deliver robust growth in short to long term.
Thefundsinvested by the Company in this group have since been deployedinvariousinvestments.

Assetmanagement

Various initiatives taken by the Company to strengthen the asset management activities reflected in the
performance duringtheyear.

JM Financial Mutual Fund was the second largest growing fund house in terms of average assets under
management during 2007-08. The average AUM grew from Rs. 3,522 crore as on March 31, 2007 to
Rs.12,945 crore as on March 31,2008 (a growth of 268%). The Asset Management Company (AMC) posted
an accounting loss for the year. We are focused on gaining market share in this nascent business that has a
longterm growth outlook.

The sales force was strengthened during the year and the AMC increased its investor reach by opening 89
new branches and investor service centres in several cities of the country covering 80 cities. It proposes to
increaseits geographical reachto | 50 branches/service centresin the near term.

AMC’s equity funds AUM grew the fastest in the industry during the year 2007-08.

The average equity assets grew from Rs. 215 crore as on March 31,2007 to Rs. 3,779 crore as on March 31,
2008 (a growth of 1,655%). The percentage increase is robust due to base numbers being very low and hence
the same may notbe comparable with theincreasein percentage numbersinfuture.
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AMC got thefollowing rankings /awards:

® JM Basic Fund, JM Emerging Leaders Fund and JM Financial Services Sector Fund were ranked among
the top 51 equity funds out of a total of 24,887 equity funds in the world on a one year basis by Lipper (a
Reuters Company) Equity Fund World Ranking.

° As tracked by Lipper Global Fund data, JM Basic Fund secured the 33rd rankin theworld ona one-year
basis (one-year total return of | | 1.44% on December 31,2007) and the |2th rank in the world over a
|0-year period (10-year annual compounded return of 37.72 % in INR as on December 31,2007).

] JMEmergingLeaders Fundsecuredthe5 | strank (oneyeartotal returnof 94.51 %as on December 31,2007).

° 5 Star Award in the aggressive equity category at the ICRA Mutual Funds awards.

Business outlook & strategy

Given the robust growth prospects in India, the financial sector has a crucial role to play in the development
of the economy. The Company seeks long-term, stable growth supported by a strongbalance sheet, with the
goal of achieving sustainable superior returns while accepting prudent operating risks.

Under the axiom of trust, the Company continues to employ various operating and financial strategies which
will guide us over the long-termand represent the way in which it conducts its business.

We seek to build our business strengths on the following:
Clientfocus

We always put the interest of our clients before our own. Our teams understand our clients needs and
endeavour to deliver unique solutions for meeting their objective.

Corporate governance and value creation

We strongly believe that highest level of corporate governance and best practices are critical for long-term
sustainable growth and for building resilience to competition. We will continue to drive and ensure
accountability, transparency, professionalism and risk containment.

Brand building

JM Financial is one of the leading domestic financial services group in India. Efforts are on to strengthen
further the strong brand that the group has built in over three and a half decades. Towards this objective,
during 2007-08, we adopted a new look and design for our corporate logo which emphasises the strength
and dependability of our service, solid corporate culture and unfailing commitments.

Opportunities and threats

Sustainable positive growth outlook of the Indian economy presents the biggest opportunity for all our
business segments. We are very focussed on capturing all opportunities before us, be it in the agency
business orin fund-based activities. Our decision to add to and strengthen our asset management businesses
and fund-based businesses during the last two years is clearly bearing fruits of this focus. In the investment
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banking and securities business, we have demonstrated our strength and conviction yet again by retaining
leadership position even as we moved very quickly tofill out the gap in the institutional securities business by
ajointventure soon after the sale of our stake in joint venture company to Morgan Stanley.

We face high market competition in all our businesses from Indian as well as multinational companies. New
entrants in the markets are a threat to various businesses in the group. People cost benchmarked to global
scale coupled with volatile market conditions pose the risk of unpredictable profitability. The continuously
increasing demand for experienced professionals in financial services industry and the related attrition
presents a threat of business coverage and execution for our businesses. We have successfully built a strong
team of professionals in all our businesses; meeting not only their financial, but also high level professional
aspirations. We have demonstrated over the years our superior ability to build, retain and expand the team
of professionalsin our businesses.

Risks and concerns

Risk is an integral part of the business and we aim at delivering superior value by achieving an appropriate
balance between risks and returns. Major risks for the Company emanate from the businesses in which its
subsidiaries / associates / group companies are engaged. Being engaged in the business in a highly regulated
industry, we are presented with risk containment measures in the very regulations that present a regulatory
risk to us.

We have classified the risks affecting our businesses as follows:

Risk Type Risk Descriptions

Business risk Impact of markets on our revenues and investments,
sustainability of the business across cycles and ability to
raise funds atshortnotice.

Settlementrisk Risk that a client will fail to deliver as per the terms of a
contractwith us oranother party at the time of settlement.

Creditrisk Risk due to uncertainty of a counterparty's ability to meet
its financial obligations to us.

Operational risk Risk of loss arising out of inadequate or flawed systems,
controlsorhuman error.

Regulatory and Compliance/Legal risk Risk to business arising out of changes in regulation,
difference in interpretation of regulations by regulator and
inadequate addressal of compliance and legal issues during
the course ofbusiness orexecution ofatransaction.

Business continuity risk Inability to conduct business and service clients in the
event of a contingency such as a natural calamity,
breakdown of infrastructure, etc.

Peoplerisk Risk arising out of loss of key personnel.
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We monitorall the events, processes and developments on a regular basis to ensure timely measures for risk
containment.

Internal control systems and their adequacy

Each business in our portfolio has laid out detailed operating procedures and documented the critical
procedures. Inall the operating systems, we ensure maker-checker control. We place very high emphasis on
conflict managementand the senior most management engages in conflict resolution process predominantly
through the sponsorship process.

We have engaged independent Chartered Accountants’ firm as well as internal staff, to carry out regular
internal audit for the operations in all businesses. The Audit Committee comprises of Non-Executive
Directors, majority of whom are independent, and is chaired by Mr. E A Kshirsagar, an eminent Chartered
Accountant with extensive experience in management advisory as well as financial and accounting aspects

for corporate activities.

The Audit Committee of the Directors regularly reviews internal audit reports, significant findings in audit
as well as internal audit, adequacy of internal controls, compliance with accounting standards and other
aspects relating to financial statements and operations of the businesses. Significantissues are brought to the
attention of the Board of Directors by the Audit Committee.

While the Group's senior management across businesses is actively engaged in risk assessment and
containment, the Group Risk Management (GRM) team identifies, analyses and monitors significant risks
affecting each business on a regular basis. GRM interacts on an ongoing basis, with the management and
operating teams in all businesses to monitor the new developments, processes and operating practices. The
report of GRM is reviewed every month by the senior management and is also circulated as part of the
agendafor every meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company.

The objectives of the risk managementare as follows:

® To develop a risk culture that encourages employees to identify the risks, associated opportunities
and respond to them with appropriate actions.

] To recognise, review, prioritise and manage existing as well as new risks in a planned and
coordinated manner.

Toincrease the effectiveness ofinternal and external reporting structure.

Activeinvolvement ofall employees in the risk management process within their own areas of responsibility.
Financial overview

The Company witnessed a healthy performance during 2007-08. The consolidated total income rose by 67%
to Rs. 742.29 crore from Rs. 444.05 crore recorded in the previous year. Further, the Company’s profit
before tax and exceptional income also grew by 53.13% from Rs. 182.94 crore to Rs. 280.15 crore. The net
profit of the Company after considering an exceptional item of Rs. 1,509.60 crore and tax is Rs.1,307.06
crore on a consolidated basis. The earnings per share after considering the exceptional item on the number
ofshares outstandingattheyear endis Rs.435.69 per share.
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On a standalone basis, the Company’s gross income has decreased marginally to Rs. 36.70 crore from
Rs. 39.38 crore in the previous year. The profit before tax and exceptional item is Rs. 28.77 crore.
After accounting for the exceptional income of Rs. 1,735.86 crore, which is due to the sale of 49%
equity stake that was held in the erstwhile joint venture company to Morgan Stanley, the profit before
taxis Rs |,751.79 crore. The profit after tax and exceptional item is Rs. 1,360.17 crore. The earnings
per share on the shares outstanding at the year end is Rs. 9.59 per share before exceptional item and
Rs.453.39 per share after exceptional item.

Owing to the good performance of the Company, the Board of Directors has recommended a dividend of
250% (including a special dividend of 200%). The Board of Directors has also decided to split the equity
share from the face value of Rs. 10/- each to ten equity shares of Re. | /- each and to issue bonus shares in the
ratio of three shares for every two shares held.

Corporatesocial responsibility

JM Financial believes that conducting its business in a socially responsible way is good business. The Group
strongly believes in giving back to the society.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) at JM Financial forms part of a larger social commitment and is a way
of life. It support many causes which arein the good interest of the public, chiefamong them being education,
healthandreliefto the poor.

Among the regular events that contribute resources for its CSR objectives are our annual fund raising
event JM Financial Walkathon, which is a six-km walk along the sea in front of Marine Drive in Mumbai,
and the annual contribution out of the profits of the companiesin the group.

JM Financial encourages employee participation in CSR activities and provides them a platform to remain
connected with the community. Some of the projects initiated include:

Drishti: Drishti is an ongoing initiative at JM Financial where employees collect old glossy
magazines and brochures and donate these periodically to schools for the visually challenged.
These schools use the glossy paper for preparing reading and learning material in Braille which is
best imprinted on thick glossy material. JM Financial has been supporting Kamla Mehta Blind
School, National Association for the Blind and Happy Home & Blind School through this initiative.
As part of Project Drishti, the organisation has also held eye donation awareness camps for

employees.

Sparsh:Through Sparsh, the employees of JM Financial directly touch the lives of the lesser privileged
and areinvolved with the community. The Group has tied up with Akanksha and HelpAge India where
employees volunteer both in individual capacity and in groups to assist these NGOs in their various
programmes. This includes employees volunteering to teach students in the Akanksha schools and
supportingthe elderly through Help Age India.
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Humanresources

We firmly believe that the ultimate identity and success of our Group is reflected by the excellent quality of
service standards consistently delivered by our people and their dedicated commitment towards attaining
ourvision. The Group crossed the landmark 1,000 employee number in February 2008.

The Human Resources (HR) function in the Group plays the role of a business partner to all businesses. The
function is actively engaged in the business strategy and plans, thus being in readiness for developing and
delivering HR practices, processes and systems for continuously evolving and expanding businesses. Human
Resources emphasises on consistent, fair and ethical dealings with all employees irrespective of level, sex or
age. Our 'peoplefirst' approach is focussed on a number of business-enhancing initiatives with the objective
of makingit one of the 'Best Places to Work'.

Our human resources management systems and processes are designed to create a responsive, customer-
centric, market-focussed, employee friendly culture and enhance organisational vitality. The emphasis is
always on defining performance parameters more accurately and monitoring the same through continuous
performance monitoring systems. We follow a 360-degree performance evaluation process across all
businessesinthe Group.

We follow various practices to provide a healthy and beneficial work environment:

° Competency mapping at the time of joining to ensure that the right person is given the right job

profile, thus enhancing productivity.

® Inculcating and maintaining a unique company culture. An entrepreneurial mindset by delegating
responsibility and allowing employees to take full control and ownership of projects assigned.

Recognitionand rewards for performance.
Trainingand development programmes.
Performance appraisal process.

HR quarterly magazine.

Employee welfare and benefit schemes

It is our belief that the competence and commitment of our people are the key drivers of competitive
advantage. The collaborative spirit of partnership across all sections of employees has resulted in significant

enhancement of quality, productivity and profitability.

Forward -Looking statements

This report describing the Company's activities, projections about the future, estimates, assumptions with
regard to global economic conditions and government policies, etc., may contain forward-looking
statements based upon the information available with the Company. The Company cannot guarantee that
these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realised. The Company assumes no
responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements, on the basis of any
subsequentdevelopments, information or events.
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Report on Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance has evolved over the years as a fundamental component of business process
for every corporate entity. Far from the amorphous existence corporate governance once entailed, it
has evolved into a firm set of guidelines that are aimed at ensuring that companies maintain a firm
commitment to values and an ethical business conduct, irrespective of its business segment, geography
or culture.

Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement executed with the Stock Exchange(s), inter alia, lays out several
corporate governance related requirements, which listed companies are required to adopt and follow.
While most of the practices laid out in Clause 49 require mandatory compliance, others are
recommendatory in nature. This Report sets out to define the governance practice followed by the

Company.
1. Our philosophy

The Company places utmost emphasis on achieving the highest level of transparency, accountability
and fairness in all facets of its operations and dealings with all its stakeholders. The Company has been

relentlessin practising the following core governance principles:

o To demonstrate the highest level of accountability by the employees in relation to their

respective areas of work.

® To maintain the highest standard of transparency inits interactions and dealings with all its
constituents.

o To ensure timely disclosure and dissemination of price sensitive information and matters

of interest toits stakeholders.
® Toensure compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

o To conductits business in an ethical manner.
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Board of Directors (“the Board”)
Mr.Nimesh N Kampani

Mr. Nimesh N Kampani, aged 62 years, B.Com, FCA (Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India) is the founder and Chairman of the JM Financial Group, one of India's leading
financial services organisation. The Group, founded in 1973, has interests in investment banking,
institutional securities, asset management, fixed income securities & related financing activities and
retail brokerage. In his career spanning more than three and a half decades, he has made pioneering
contributions towards the development of the Indian capital markets and has advised several
corporates on their strategic and financial needs, especially capital raising and mergers &
acquisitions.

Mr. Kampani has over the years, served as a member of several important committees constituted
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Confederation of Indian Industry, Federation of
Indian Chambers of Commerce and Industry, Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, National Stock
Exchange of India Limited and Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. He has also served as a
member of the High Power Expert Committee constituted by the Ministry of Finance on making
Mumbai an International Finance Centre. The list of various organisations and committees, where
heisamemberis given below:

® National Council of Confederation of Indian Industry (ClII).

L Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce & Industry (FICCI).

° CllI's National Committee on Capital Markets - Chairman.

° Primary Market Advisory Committee of the Securities and Exchange Board of India.
° Governing Council of the Indian Institute of Capital Markets.

° Advisory Panel on Financial Regulation and Supervision of the Committee on Financial
Sector Assessment constituted by Reserve Bank of India.

o Bloomberg Asia Pacific Advisory Board.

° Advisory Board of Rieter India Private Limited.

Mr. Kampaniisalso on the Board of the following public companies:
L Apollo Tyres Limited
° BritanniaIndustries Limited

L] Deepak Nitrite Limited

L] KSB Pumps Limited
° Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited
o Kampani Consultants Limited
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Mr.Kampaniisalsoamember of the following committees of the Board of other public companies:

Name of the Company Audit Shareholders' Grievance
Britannia Industries Limited Chairman Member

KSB Pumps Limited Chairman -

Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited Member -

AsonMarch 31,2008, Mr. Kampani holds 5,414,300 equity shares of the Company.
Mr.M R Mondkar

Mr.MR Mondkar, aged 77 years, a graduate in Science and Law has held various prestigious positions in
organisations like ICICI Limited and J. M. Financial & Investment Consultancy Services Private Limited
(JMFICS). He was involved in setting up the merchant banking division of ICICI Limited in 1972-73. He
was also involved in setting up of Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited (HDFC) on
behalf of ICICI Limited which was then the promoter of HDFC. He was associated with JMFICS as
Presidentfrom 1992 to 1996. He isaMember of the Listing Committee of the National Stock Exchange
of India Limited.

AsonMarch 31,2008, Mr.Mondkar does not hold any equity shares of the Company.

Mr. Ashith N Kampani

Mr. Ashith N Kampani, aged 44 years,a Commerce Graduate from the University of Mumbai has 27
years of experience in equity broking and has serviced all segments - retail, high net-worth
individuals, corporates and institutions. He began his career with the family's stock brokerage firm
in 1982 and then worked with JSB Securities Limited / JM Financial Limited between 1991 and 1998
as Head of Dealing. From 1999 to 2007, he was with JM Morgan Stanley Securities Private Limited
(now known as Morgan Stanley India Company Private Limited). He was a Senior Vice President in
the institutional equities division of said company in 2007, servicing institutional clients in Asia. Mr.
Kampani currently is part of JM Financial Group and leads the efforts in relation to the Corporate -
Investorsinteractions.

AsonMarch 31,2008, Mr. Kampaniholds 4,6 | | equity shares of the Company.

Mr.E A Kshirsagar

Mr. E A Kshirsagar, aged 66 years, a Chartered Accountant, is a specialist in corporate strategy and
structure, disinvestments - central / state / private sector, feasibility studies for a variety of industries
and the impact of legislations on business. He was associated with the management consultancy
division of AF Ferguson for over three decades, retiring in 2004 as Director-in-Charge. He is a Fellow
Member of the English and Indian Institutes of Chartered Accountants. Mr.Kshirsagaristhe Chairman
of the Audit Committee of the Company.
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Mr. Kshirsagarisalso on the Board of the following public companies:
° Batliboi Limited
L HCL Infosystems Limited
° Merck Limited
® Rallis India Limited

Mr.Kshirsagarisalsoamember of the following committees of the Board of other public companies:

Name ofthe Company Audit Shareholders' Grievance
Batliboi Limited Member -

HCL Infosystems Limited Member Member

Merck Limited Member -

Rallis India Limited Chairman Chairman

Mr. Kshirsagar retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, offer
himselffor reappointment.

AsonMarch 31,2008, Mr. Kshirsagar does not hold any equity shares of the Company.

Mr. Dilip Kothari

Mr. Dilip Kothari, aged 54 years, holds a Master's degree in Finance from the Kansas State
University, USA. Mr. Kothari is the founding Managing Director and Head of the private
equity business of JM Financial Group since January 2006. He has over 23 years of experience
in the global financial services industry, having spent 10 years in the United States of America
and over |2 yearsin Asia. Prior to JM Financial, Mr. Kothari was Managing Director, Olympus
Capital Holdings. Before that he was Head of consumer banking, HSBC, Singapore, and Head
of credit policy and risk management, Citibank, Asia. He started his career with Citibank,
where he held various senior management positions in the consumer banking division, based
in the United States of America.

Mr.Kothariis also on the Board of the following public companies:
® Spandana Sphoorty Financial Limited
° JMFinancial Investment Managers Limited

AsonMarch 31,2008, Mr.Kothari does not hold any equity shares of the Company.
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Mr.D EUdwadia

Mr. D E Udwadia, aged 69 years, is an Advocate and Solicitor of the Bombay High Courtand a Solicitor
of the Supreme Court of England, UK. Mr. Udwadia, Partner, Udwadia & Udeshi, Solicitors &
Advocates, acts as a Legal Counsel for numerous Indian companies, multinational corporations and
foreign banks in India. He has spent over 44 years in active law practice and has vast experience and
expertise in areas like corporate law, mergers, acquisitions and takeovers, corporate restructuring,
foreign collaboration, joint ventures, project and infrastructure finance, telecommunications,
international loanandfinance related transactionsand instruments, real estate and conveyancing.

Mr.Udwadiaisalso on the Board of the following public companies:

ABB Limited Eureka Forbes Limited

ADF Foods Limited ITD Cementation India Limited
Avesthagen Limited Macmillan India Limited
AstraZenecaPharmaIndia Limited Mechanalysis (India) Limited
Bombay Trading Corp. Co. Limited Sundaram-Clayton Limited
Coromandel Fertilisers Limited Wyeth Limited

WABCO-TVS (India) Limited

Development Credit Bank Limited
Mr. Udwadia retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, offer
himselffor reappointment.

AsonMarch 31,2008, Mr. Udwadia does not hold any equity shares of the Company.

Dr.Pravin P Shah

Dr. Pravin P Shah, aged 64 years, a Ph.D. in Cost Accounting from the University of Mumbai and a
Chartered Accountant and Cost Accountant is a Partner, M/s. Pravin P Shah & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Mumbai. He has over 38 years of experience (including 6 years in the United States of
America) in the areas of financial consultancy, corporate structuring / restructuring, taxation,
management consultancy, valuation, property matters and accounting. He has contributed several
technical papers at conferences and published books and articles in India and in USA on the above
mentioned subjects.

Dr.Shahisalso on the Board of following public companies:
o AdaniEnterprises Limited

Bhansali Engineering Polymers Limited

Claris Lifesciences Limited

Bombay Rayon Fashions Limited

Jai Corp Limited
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Dr.Shahisalsoamember of the following committees of the Board of other public companies:

Name ofthe Company Audit
AdaniEnterprises Limited Member
Bhansali Engineering Polymers Limited Member
Claris Lifesciences Limited Member
Bombay Rayon Fashions Limited Chairman

AsonMarch 31,2008, Dr. Shah does nothold any equity shares of the Company.

Mr.Paul Zuckerman

Mr. Paul Zuckerman, aged 63 years, holds a Ph.D in Agricultural Economics from Reading
University, United Kingdom. Mr. Zuckerman, Chairman & CEO of Zuckerman & Associates Ltd.,
has been associated with various international organisations, including World Bank and
International Institute of Tropical Agriculture, Ibadan, Nigeria. He was Vice Chairman, SG
Warburg International, prior to its acquisition by UBS. In this capacity, he was closely associated
with Indian companies in the early days of globalisation.

Mr.Zuckermanis also on the Board of the following Indian public companies:

® Tech Mahindra Limited

° GreatEastern Energy Corporation Limited
Mr. Zuckerman was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company at the meeting of the Board
of Directors held on October 29, 2007, pursuant to Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956 read
with Article | 17 of the Articles of Association. He is an Independent Director. His appointment as a
Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation, would be considered at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

AsonMarch 31,2008, Mr.Zuckerman does not hold any equity shares of the Company.

(a) Compositionofthe Board of Directors

The composition of the Board is governed by the Companies
Act, 1956, the Listing Agreement and Articles of Association
of the Company. The Board consists of eight members, all of
which are Non-Executive Directors as on March 31, 2008.
The Board comprises of five Independent Directors, namely,
Mr. M R Mondkar, Mr. E A Kshirsagar, Mr. D E Udwadia,
Dr. Pravin P Shah and Mr. Paul Zuckerman. Mr. Nimesh N Kampani
is the Chairman of the Company as on March 31, 2008. The
percentage of Independent Directors has increased to 71%
with effect from May 28, 2008 on account of the resignation of
Mr. Dilip Kothari.

Independent

Non-Independent
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(b) Boardagenda

All the departments in the Company communicate with the Company Secretary well in advance with
regard to matters requiring the approval of the Board / Committees of the Board to enable inclusion
of the same in the agenda for the Board / Committee Meetings. The Members of the Board are also
freeto recommend inclusion of any matters in the agendafor discussion.

The following information as enumerated in Annexure | A to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement is
made available to the Board for discussion and consideration at Board Meetings:

° Annual operating plans and budgets, capital budgets and updates, if any.
] Quarterly results of operating divisions or business segments.
® Minutes of meetings of audit, compensation, shareholders' grievance and investment

committees as well as circular resolutions passed.

Information on recruitment of senior managerial personsin the Company.

o Materially important litigations, show cause, demand, prosecution and penalty notices,
ifany.

o Fatal or serious accidents or occurrences of events such as fire, ifany.

° Material defaultin financial obligations to and by the Company, ifany.

® Issues thatinvolves possible public or service liability claims of a substantial nature, ifany.

L] Details of any joint venture, acquisition of companies or businesses or collaboration
agreement.

[ ) Transactions that involve substantial payment towards goodwill, brand equity or intellectual
property.

Significant employee related problems, ifany and their proposed solutions.

Sale of material nature of investments, subsidiaries and assets, which are not in the
normal course of business.

Details of foreign exchange exposure, ifany.

Non-compliance, if any, of regulatory, statutory or listing requirements as well as
investor services such as non-payment of dividend and delays in share transfers, ifany.

Besides the above information, the following information related to the subsidiary companies
engaged in various operating businesses, is also placed before the Board to provide the Directors an
update onall businesses and functions across the Group:

] Business reviews for the period between two Board Meetings.
o Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors of the operating subsidiaries.
® Details of any major events having an impact on the business operation, compliance

matters and employee related matters.

] Steps taken to ensure business continuity planningand ongoing initiatives.
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Presentation by teams of the respective businesses under their management.

Presentation by corporate support teams such as Human Resources, Legal and Compliance,
etc. detailing their functions, relationships with business, initiatives to make business
execution more efficient.

The meetings of the Board of Directors are normally held at the registered office of the Company in Mumbai.
Meetings are generally scheduled well in advance and the notice of each Board Meeting is given in writing to
each Director. In special and exceptional circumstances, additional or supplementary items on the agenda
are allowed to be considered with the permission of the Chair. The Company Secretary, in consultation with
the business teams and the Chairman, prepares the detailed agenda for the meetings. All material
information is incorporated in the agenda papers to facilitate meaningful and focussed discussions at the
meetings. The board papers, agenda and other explanatory notes are circulated to the Directors in advance.
The Board has unfettered and complete access to information and to employees within the Company. The
senior management is invited to attend the Board Meetings to provide additional inputs in relation to the

matters being discussed by the Board.

The composition of Board, attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings during the financial year
2007-08 and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM), the number of other directorships and
memberships/chairmanships in public companies as on March 31,2008 are as follows:

FY 2007-08
Attendance at
No. of .
Directorships (Sl Il
Narrle of the Category in other positions
Director Board Last oo -
Meetings | AGM s
Member |Chairman
Mr. Nimesh N Kampani**| Chairman & 8 Yes 6 2 2
Non-Executive Director
Mr. M R Mondkar Independent & 7 Yes - - -
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Ashith N Kampani | Non-Executive Director 7 Yes - - -
Mr. E A Kshirsagar Independent & 6 Yes 4 4 2
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Dilip Kothari® Non-Executive Director 6 No 2 - -
Mr. D E Udwadia Independent & 7 Yes 14 - -
Non-Executive Director
Dr. Pravin P Shah Independent & 5 Yes 5 3 |
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Paul Zuckerman® | Independent & I - 2 - -
Non-Executive Director
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Notes:

" Appointed as Managing Director with effect from May 28, 2008.
© Ceasedto be a Director with effectfrom May 28, 2008.

* Mr. Paul Zuckerman was appointed as Additional Director of the Company at the Board Meeting held on October
29,2007.

* The Committees considered for the purpose of arriving at the above number are Audit and Shareholders’ Grievance
Committees.

" The directorships held by Directors as mentioned above, do not include alternate directorships and directorships of
foreign companies, Section 25 companies and private limited companies.

None of the above Directors hold directorships in more than |5 public companies nor is a Member of more than 10
Committees and Chairman of more than five Committees.

(c) Minutes
The minutes of each Board/ Committee Meetings are recorded in the Minutes Book.
(d) Compliance

The Company Secretary, while preparing the agenda, notes on agenda and minutes of the meetings, is
required to ensure adherence to all the applicable laws and regulations including the Companies Act,
1956 read with the Rules made there under and to the extent feasible, the Secretarial Standards
recommended by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, New Delhi.

Certificate of the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary confirming compliance with
applicablelaws and regulations is placed before the Board on a quarterly basis.

The Company Secretary also places before the Board an action report on the implementation of
decisions of the Board in the form of matters arising from the previous meeting(s) for the follow up
information of the Directors.

(e¢) NumberofBoardMeetings

The Company strives to hold at least seven Board Meetings in each year, of which four meetings, one
in each quarter, include the agenda for review of the financial results. The maximum time-gap
between any two consecutive meetings does not exceed four months. Urgent matters are also
considered and approved by passing resolutions through circulation. The average duration of the
Board Meetings held isapproximately four hours.

The Company held eight Board Meetings during the financial year 2007-08, on the dates given below:

April 2,2007 June 29,2007

July 4,2007 July 30,2007
October 29,2007 December I'1,2007
January 29,2008 March 5,2008
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The Audit Committee monitors and supervises the Company's financial reporting process with a

view to provide accurate, timely and proper disclosures. The Committee also monitors the integrity

and quality of the financial reporting. The Committee, on one hand, acts as a link between the

Statutory andtheInternal Auditors and the Board of Directors of the Company on the other.

(a) Compositionofthe Committee

The composition of the Audit Committee meets the requirements of Section 292A of the

Companies Act, 1956 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

The Audit Committee consists of following Members:

Name Category Member/Chairman
Mr. E A Kshirsagar Independent Director Chairman

Mr.MR Mondkar Independent Director Member

Mr. Ashith N Kampani Non-Independent Director Member

Dr. Pravin P Shah Independent Director Member

The Statutory and Internal Auditors are invited to the meeting of the Audit Committee to point

out any observations they may have with regard to finance, accounting, operations and other

allied matters. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

(b) Meetingsofthe Audit Committee

During the financial year 2007-08, four meetings of the Audit Committee were held on
June 28,2007, July 30,2007, October 29,2007 and January 29, 2008.

Details of the attendance of each Member of the Committee are given below:

Name of Members Attendance
Mr. E A Kshirsagar 3
Mr.MR Mondkar 4
Mr. Ashith N Kampani 4
Dr.Pravin P Shah 3

(c¢) Roleofthe Audit Committee

l. Overseeing the financial reporting process and disclosure of the financial information to

ensure thatthefinancial statementsare accurate, complete and credible.

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, reappointment and, if required, the replacement

orremoval of theStatutory Auditors, Internal Auditors andfixation of their remuneration.
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Reviewing with the management, the annual/quarterly financial statements before submission
tothe Board forapproval, with particular reference to:

o Changes, ifany, inaccounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

® Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgement
by the management.

Significantadjustments madein thefinancial statements arising out of audit findings.
Compliance withlistingand other legal requirements relating to financial statements.

Disclosure of related party transactions.

Qualifications, ifany, in draftaudit report.
Reviewing with the management, the adequacy of internal control systems.

Discussion with Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors on any significant findings and follow
up thereon with the management.

Carrying out such other functions as may be specifically referred to the Committee by the
Board of Directors of the Company.

Reviewing the financial statements, and in particular, the investments made by the unlisted
subsidiaries of the Company.

Review of uses / application of funds raised, if any, through an issue (public issue, rights issue,
preferential issue, etc.).

Review of the Company's financial and risk management policies.

(d) Powersofthe Audit Committee

The powers of the Audit Committee as enumeratedin the Listing Agreementare as follows:

2
3.
4

Toinvestigate any activity within its terms of reference.
Toseekinformationfromany employee.
To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

Tosecureattendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if considered necessary.

(e) Reviewofinformationby Audit Committee

2.
3.
4.

Managementdiscussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations.
Statement of significant related party transactions.
Letters of internal control issued by the Statutory Auditors.

Internal auditreports.

Minutes of the Audit Committee Meetings form part of the agenda of Board Meetings. Additionally, the
Chairman of the Audit Committee briefs the Board of Directors about the significant discussions at Audit

Committee Meetings.

46



IV. Remuneration/Compensation Committee

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Composition ofthe Committee

JM FINANCIAL

TheRemuneration/ Compensation Committee (‘the Committee') comprises of the followingMembers:

Name of Members

Category

Member/Chairman

Mr.Nimesh N Kampani
Mr. E A Kshirsagar
Mr.D EUdwadia
Dr.Pravin P Shah

Non-Executive Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Chairman
Member
Member

Member

Meetings ofthe Compensation Committee

During thefinancial year 2007-08, two meetings of the Committee were held on December 27,

2007 and March 29, 2008.

Details of the attendance of each Member of the Committee are given below:

NameofMembers

No. of meetings attended

Mr. Nimesh N Kampani
Mr.E AKshirsagar

Mr. D EUdwadia
Dr.Pravin PShah

2

2
2
2

Compensation policy

The Company follows the policy of rewarding performance, based on review of the Company,

departmentandindividual performance annually.

Details of remuneration of Directors

The details of the sitting fees and commission paid / payable to the Non-Executive Directors of the
Company for thefinancial year 2007-08 are given below:

Name of the Commission Sitting fees (Rs.)
Director payable
(Rs.) Board Audit Compensation

Committee Committee
Mr.Nimesh N Kampani - 40,000 - 6,000
Mr.MR Mondkar 6,00,000 35,000 12,000 -
Mr. Ashith N Kampani 5,00,000 35,000 12,000 -
Mr.E AKshirsagar 9,00,000 30,000 9,000 6,000
Mr. Dilip Kothari 4,00,000 30,000 = =
Mr. D EUdwadia 9,00,000 35,000 - 6,000
Dr.Pravin P Shah 9,00,000 25,000 9,000 6,000
Mr. Paul Zuckerman 3,00,000 5,000 = =
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Criteriafor making the payment of Commission

In the backdrop of growing complexities and increasing regulatory requirements, Non-Executive Directors
have contributed significantly to the meetings and given constructive and useful feedback pertaining to the
business and operations of the Company. Takinginto consideration their contribution, an aggregate amount
of Rs. 45 lakh is proposed to be paid as commission to the Directors for the financial year 2007-08 as per
individual allocation decided by the Board of Directors. Since the commission amount as above exceeds the
limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956, itis subjectto theapproval of the Members at the general
meetingand the Central Government.

The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors is decided keeping in mind the role assumed, number of
meetings of the Board and the Committees thereof attended by each of them; the position held by them as
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and their role as Independent Directors on the Board and the
Member/ Chairman of the Audit Committee of the subsidiary companies.

During the year, the Company paid Rs. 88.48 lakh as professional fees to M/s. Udwadia & Udeshi, a firm, in
which Mr. D E Udwadia, a Director of the Company, is a partner. The Company also paid an aggregate
amount of Rs. 48.25 lakh as professional fees to M/s. Pravin P Shah & Co. and M/s Pravin P Shah & Associates,
partnership and sole proprietorship firm, in which Dr. Pravin P Shah, a Director of the Company, is a partner
and the sole proprietor, respectively. However, these payments do not affect their independence as
Directors of the Company. There were no other pecuniary relationships or transactions of the Non-
Executive Directors vis-a-vis the Company.

V. Shareholders' Grievance Committee
(a) Compositionofthe Committee

The Shareholders' Grievance Committee comprises of Mr. M R Mondkar and Mr. Ashith N
Kampani.

(b) Termsofreference

The terms of reference of the Shareholders' Grievance Committee is to redress shareholders’
complaints including grievances relating to transfer & transmission of shares, non-receipt of
balance sheet, dividend, etc. The Committee takes steps for resolving complaints / queries of
the shareholders. The Committee also recommends measures for overall improvement in the
quality of investor services.

(c) Numberofmeetings

The Committee met four times during the year on April 2, 2007, July 4, 2007, October 16,2007
and January 29,2008. Details of the attendance of each Member of the Committeeare given below:

Name ofMembers No. of meetings attended
Mr.MR Mondkar 4
Mr. Ashith N Kampani 4
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Particulars of the number of complaints / queries received and resolved by the Company during the financial
year 2007-08 are given in the table below. No complaints are pendingas on March 31,2008.

The break-up of the number of complaints/ queries received and their natureis given below:

Nature of complaints/queries Received (Nos.)| Resolved (Nos.)
Requestforinformation relating to tradable warrants 10 10
Non-receipt of 14% & 1 6% debentures redemption money 10 10

Requestforinformation on buyback I I

Non-receipt of share certificates sent for transfer/transmission 15 15
Non-receipt of duplicate shares 6 6
Change of address 5 5
Non-receipt of annual reports 7 7
Non-receipt of dividend 23 23
Total 77 77

Mr. P K Choksi, Company Secretary, acts as the Compliance Officer to monitor the share transfer process
and other related matters.

VI.General Body Meetings

All resolutions moved at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) were passed by show of hands with the
requisite majority of Members attending the meeting. The following are the Special Resolutions passed at
the general meetings of the Company held in last three years.

Venue and Time of general meetings

Whether
AGM/EGM special
held on Venue Time |resolution Summary
passed
July 6,2005 Kamalnayan Bajaj Hall 3.30 p.m. Yes Payment of commission to the
Bajaj Bhavan Directors up to 3% of the net profits
Nariman Point ofthe Company.
Mumbai - 400 021
November 4, | Kamalnayan Bajaj Hall 1.30a.m. Yes ® Alteration of Articles of
2005 Bajaj Bhavan Association to reflectincreasein
Extraordinary | Nariman Point authorised capital of the
General Mumbai - 400 021 Company.
Meeting ® |[ssue of up to 2,100,000 equity
(EGM) shares on preferential basis to
Blue Ridge Limited Partnership
and Blue Ridge Offshore Master
Limited Partnership.
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Whether
AGM/EGM special
heldon Venue Time |[resolution Summary
passed
® |ssue of up to 2,100,000 equity
shares on preferential basis to
Tiger Global, L.P., Tiger Global,
Ltd.and Tiger Globalll, L.P.
® Increase in limit of foreign
investment by foreign
institutional investors from
24% to 40% of paid up capital
ofthe Company.
February |5, Y B Chavan Centre 3.30p.m. Yes Scheme of Amalgamation of
2006 General Jagannath Bhosale J. M. Securities Private Limited
Marg with JM Financial Limited.
Court .
Mumbai-400021
Convened
General
Meeting
June [, 2006 Kamalnayan Bajaj Hall 4.00 p.m. Yes Issue of upto 2,101,667 equity shares
Extraordinary | Bajaj Bhavan on preferential basis to Blue Ridge
General Nariman Point Limited Partnership, Blue Ridge
Meetin Mumbai - 400 021 Offshore Master Limited Partnership
g . i
(EGM) and Mr. Azim Hasham Premji.
September?7, Kamalnayan Bajaj Hall 4.00 p.m. Yes ® Payment of commission to the
2006 Bajaj Bhavan Directors between | % and up to
Nariman Point 3% of the net profits of the
Mumbai - 400 021 Company.
® Three resolutions under Section
81(1A) of the Companies Act,
1956 for seeking necessary
approvals offering shares under
Employee Stock Option Scheme.
September 6, Kamalnayan Bajaj Hall 3.30p.m. Yes ® For holding an office or place of
2007 Bajaj Bhavan profit by Mr. Ashith N Kampani, a
Nariman Point relative of Mr. Nimesh N Kampani
Mumbai - 400 021 pursuant to Section 314(1) of the
CompaniesAct, 1956.
® Three resolutions under Section

81(1A) of the Companies Act,
| 956 offering equity stock options
under Employee Stock Option
Scheme.
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Postalballot
Resolution passed through postal ballot

An ordinary resolution was passed on March 14, 2008 through postal ballot, pursuant to Section
92A of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Passing of Resolutions by Postal Ballot)
Rules, 2001, for contributing to charitable and / or other funds in excess of the limits prescribed under
Section 293(1)(e) ofthe Companies Act, 1956.

(a) Scrutiniser

The Board appointed Mr. B V Dholakia, Practising Company Secretary, as the Scrutiniser to
conduct postal ballot voting process. Mr. Dholakia conducted the process and submitted his
reportto the Chairman.

(b) Procedurefollowed

(i)  The postal ballot notice and other related documents were dispatched to Members
under certificate of posting.

(ii) A calendar of events along with Board Resolution was submitted with the Registrar of
Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai.

(iii) Theresult of the postal ballot was announced by the Chairman at the registered office of
the Company, is posted on the website and will also be announced in the forthcoming
AGM.

(c) Detailsofvotingpattern

After scrutinising all the ballot forms received, the Scrutiniser reported that the Members
representing 99.99% of the total voting strength voted in favour of the resolution, based on
which the result was declared by the Chairman of the Company on March 14, 2008 and the
resolution was carried with overwhelming majority.

Analysis of votes cast

Particulars Number ofvotes Percentage

Assent 2,35,48,844 99.99
Dissent 0 0
Invalid votes 2,600 0.01
Total 2,35,51,444 100.00

No special resolutionis proposedto be passed prior to the forthcoming AGM through postal ballot.
VIll. Meansofcommunication

The quarterly / half yearly / annual results are regularly submitted to the stock exchanges, in
accordance with the Listing Agreement, and are published in one English daily newspaper
circulating in the whole or substantially the whole of India and in one newspaper published in
Marathilanguage being the language of the region, where the registered office of the Company is
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situated. These results are also displayed on the website of the Company (www.jmfinancial.in). The
information regarding the performance of the Company is shared with the Members through the
Annual Report. The Company has regularly uploaded the information as specified under Clause 51 of
the Listing Agreement on the Electronic Data Information Filing and Retrieval System (EDIFAR)
launched by SEBI.

IX. Subsidiary companies

The minutes of the Board Meetings of unlisted subsidiary companies forms part of the agenda of the
quarterly Board Meetings of the Company. The Board also periodically reviews the statement of
significant transactions and arrangements entered into by the unlisted subsidiary companies.

The Company has appointed the following Independent Directors on the Board of its material
unlisted Indian subsidiary companies:

Name ofthe Company Name ofthe Director

JMFinancial Consultants Private Limited Mr.D EUdwadia
Dr.Pravin PShah

JM Financial Products Private Limited Mr.MR Mondkar

JM Financial Services Private Limited Dr.Pravin P Shah

X. Compliance with other mandatory requirements
. Management Discussion and Analysis:

The Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of this Annual Report and includes
discussions on various matters specified under Clause 49(1V)(F) of the Listing Agreement.

2. Disclosures:

a. Related party transactions:

The Company has entered into related party transactions as set out in the Notes to
Accounts. None of these significant transactions are likely to have a potential conflict
with the interests of the Company. The details of all significant transactions with related
partiesare periodically placed before the Audit Committee.

b. Disclosure of accounting treatment:

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting
Standardsissued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India to the extentapplicable.

c. Disclosures on risk management:

The Company has laid down procedures for risk management, assessment and its
minimisation. The Group risk management team places an update on risk management
tothe Boardatits meetings.
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3. Secretarial AuditReport:

In line with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), Secretarial Audit
is carried out on a quarterly basis by a firm of Practising Company Secretaries to confirm that
the aggregate number of equity shares of the Company held in National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL), Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and in physical form tally
with the total number of issued, paid-up, listed and admitted capital of the Company.

4. No penalty or strictures:

No penalty or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the stock exchanges, SEBI or
any other statutory authority, on any matter related to the capital markets, since the date of
listing of equity shares.

General Shareholders’ Information

Annual General Meeting

Dateandtime : July25,2008

Venue : Woalchand Hirachand Hall, 4th Floor, Indian Merchants' Chamber,
Churchgate, Mumbai - 400020

Financial year : April 1,2007 toMarch 31,2008

Dates ofbook closure : July 18,2008 toJuly 25,2008 (Both days inclusive)

Dividend payment date 1 July29,2008

Listing on stock exchanges :  Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE),

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers

Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001|

Tel:9122 22721233/4 Fax:9122 22721919
www.bseindia.com

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
Exchange Plaza

PlotNo.C-1, G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex
Bandra (East), Mumbai-40005|

Tel:9122 26598100/8114 Fax:9122 26598120
www.nseindia.com

Listing Fees :  The Company has paid the Annual Listing fees to the BSE and
NSEfor thefinancial year 2008-09 as per the Listing Agreement

ISIN number : INE780C01015

BSE code : 523405

NSE symbol : JMFINANCIL

Registered office :  141,Maker Chambers Ill, Nariman Point, Mumbai-400021

Website :  www.jmfinancial.in
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Registrars & sharetransferagents  : Sharepro Services (India) Private Limited
Investor relation centres

Nariman Point office : 912, Raheja Centre, Free Press Journal Road
Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021
Contact Person: Mr. Ravi Bhandari
Tel. No. 91 22 6772 0700
Counter Timings:
On weekdays - 10.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m.
On Saturdays - 10.00 a.m. to 4.00 p.m.

Main office : 3rd Floor, Satam Industrial Estate, Above Bank of Baroda
Cardinal Gracious Road, Chakala
Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 099
Contact Person: Ms.Indira Karkera/Mr. Gopal Poojari
Tel No. 91 22 6772 0300
Counter Timings:
On weekdays - 10.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m.
On Saturdays - 10.00 a.m. to 4.00 p.m.

Plantlocations :  NotApplicable
Addressfor correspondence . 141,Maker Chamberslll, Nariman Point, Mumbai—-400021.
Share transfer system :  The equity shares lodged for transfer in physical mode are duly

transferred and returned to the investors well within the
statutory time period, provided the documents lodged for
transfer are complete in all respects and also there is no
objection / prohibition imposed on the transfer of shares. The
Allotment & Share Transfer Committee meets periodically to
approve the transfer requests. The particulars of the share
transfersare reported to the Boardforits noting.

As required under Clause 47(c) of the Listing Agreements
entered into by the Company with BSE and NSE, a
certificate is obtained every six months from a Practising
Company Secretary, confirming that the request for
transfer, transmission, sub-division, consolidation and
exchange of equity shares have been effected within one
month of their lodgment subject to all the documents being
in order. The said certificate is forwarded to BSE and NSE,
within the stipulated time period.

Dematerialisation of shares :  All requests for dematerialisation of shares are processed
and confirmed to the depositories, namely, NSDL and
CDSL, within 21 days. The particulars of the
dematerialisation are reported to the Board for its noting.

Sharesin dematerialised mode : As on March 31, 2008, 2,95,29,025 equity shares
representing 98.43% of the Company's share capital are
heldin electronic mode.
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Out of the above shares in electronic mode, 2,94,01,236
equity shares representing 98% have been dematerialised
under NSDL, whereas 1,27,789 shares representing 0.43%
have been dematerialised under CDSL.

Comparison chart giving the break up of shares held in physical and dematerialised mode as on March 31,
2008 as compared to that of March 31,2007 is given below:
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No. of shares

Stockmarket datarelating to theshares

Details of monthly open, high, low and close prices and volume of shares traded on BSE are given below:

Month Open High Low Close No. of Shares
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Traded
April 2007 1007.40 1080.00 932.00 1036.60 10,260
May 2007 1036.50 1188.80 965.00 1102.70 74,464
June 2007 1110.00 1140.00 975.00 1060.35 6,71,572
July 2007 1100.00 1350.00 1018.00 1309.65 3,34,670
August 2007 1252.10 1399.00 1216.80 1380.00 67,896
September 2007 1381.00 1744.90 1360.00 1658.65 94,378
October 2007 1700.00 1865.00 1525.00 1813.30 1,98,844
November 2007 1848.95 2699.00 1700.00 2377.05 2,44,788
December2007 2450.55 2919.00 2257.00 2882.00 1,36,568
January 2008 3000.00 3979.80 2369.75 3023.30 1,85,707
February 2008 3025.00 3159.00 2205.05 2221.15 1,03,390
March 2008 2110.00 2210.00 1182.85 1315.10 1,16,926

(Source : www.bseindia.com)
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Details of monthly open, high, low and close prices and volume of shares traded on NSE are given below:

Month Open High Low Close No. of Shares
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Traded
April 2007 999.95 1055.00 932.00 1042.55 1,07,144
May 2007 1050.00 1198.90 984.10 1100.00 82,582
June 2007 1106.15 1129.00 956.00 1071.20 54,782
July 2007 1080.00 1353.00 975.00 1310.65 1,60,239
August 2007 1276.15 1314.90 1222.00 1380.15 1,04,953
September 2007 1375.10 1780.00 1375.00 1659.60 77,277
October 2007 1720.00 1900.00 1557.65 1820.95 1,34,610
November 2007 1890.00 2698.50 1701.00 2388.25 1,42,904
December2007 2400.25 2910.00 2365.55 2898.40 1,52,164
January 2008 3000.00 3974.10 2400.00 3045.85 2,40,113
February 2008 3155.55 3157.00 2203.10 2234.55 46,571
March 2008 2124.60 2220.00 1173.85 1321.70 [,15,177

(Source : www.nseindia.com)

The performance of the price of the Company's equity shares vis-a-vis the BSE Sensitive Index (Sensex) is
depictedin the chartbelow:
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(Source : www.bseindia.com)
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The performance of the price of the Company's equity shares vis-a-vis the S & P CNX NIFTY is given in the

chartbelow:
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(Source : www.nseindia.com)
Information about shareholdingasonMarch 31,2008
l. Distribution of shareholding:
Number of Shares held Shareholders Shares
Numbers | Percentage Numbers | Percentage
I - 500 6,914 93.75 678,701 2.26
501 - 1000 229 3.10 178,349 0.59
1001 - 2000 96 1.30 146,492 0.49
2001 - 3000 37 0.50 92,751 0.31
3001 - 4000 15 0.20 54,241 0.18
4001 - 5000 16 0.22 73,963 0.25
5001 - 10000 2| 0.29 149,914 0.50
10001 & above 47 0.64 28,625,589 95.42
Total 7,375 100.00 | 30,000,000 100.00
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Category Number of Amount Percentageto
Shares held paidup (Rs.) the Total
Promoters:
Bodies corporate 11,826,164 118,261,640 39.42
Individual(s) - - -
Person having control over the
Company (PCC):
Bodies corporate - - -
Individual(s) 5,414,300 54,143,000 18.05
Personsactinginconcert (PAC):
Bodies corporate 299,800 2,998,000 1.00
Individuals 2,663,311 26,633,110 8.87
Total (A) 20,203,575 202,035,750 67.35
Non-Promoters:
Mutual Funds & Banks (MFs) 665,009 6,650,090 222
Foreign Institutional Investors (Flls) 1,446,931 14,469,310 4.82
Bodies corporate (Corporates) 282,729 2,827,290 0.94
Non-Resident Indians (NRI) 37,529 375,290 0.13
Foreign DirectInvestors (FDI)
(Limited partnerships & limited
liability partnerships) 5,171,262 51,712,620 17.23
Public 2,192,965 21,929,650* 7.31
Total (B) 9,796,425 97,964,250%* 32.65
Total (A+B) 30,000,000 300,000,000%* 100.00

* Inclusive of calls-in-arrears and amount in respect of shares held in abeyance under Section 206A of the

Companies Act, 1956.

Shareholding as on March 31,2008

NRI

Corporates

Flls
MFs

PAC

Public

PCC

Promoters
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Sr. Name ofthe Shareholder Number of Percentageto
No. Shares total shares
I J. M. Financial & Investment Consultancy
Services Private Limited 8,124,264 27.08
2 Nimesh Nagindas Kampani 5,414,300 18.05
3 J. M. Assets Management Private Limited 3,507,700 I1.69
4 Blue Ridge L. P./ Offshore Master L. P. 3,326,667 11.09
5 Aruna Nimesh Kampani 1,920,050 6.40
6 Tiger Global, Ltd./L.P./1l,L.P. 1,844,595 6.15
7 Azim Hasham Premiji 875,000 2.92
8 Morgan Stanley Mauritius Company Limited 720,098 2.40
9 Citigroup Markets Mauritius Private Limited 661,792 221
10 Vishal Nimesh Kampani 345,000 .15

Outstanding GDRs /ADRs / warrants or
convertibleinstruments, conversion

date and likely impact on equity

Compliance certificate of the auditors

None. The Company has notissuedany such instruments.

Certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the

Company, M/s. Khimji Kunverji & Co., confirming
compliance with the conditions of corporate
governance as stipulated under Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement, is annexed and forms part of this

Annual Report.

Xll. Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct has been formulated for the Board of Directors and senior employees of the
Company. The Code of Conduct contains, inter alia, the policies on confidentiality, conflict of interest,
insider trading and securities investment process and restrictions thereon. All the Board Members and the
designated senior management personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct. A

declaration signed by the Chairman & Managing Director to this effectisannexed hereto.
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DECLARATION
I hereby confirm that:

The Company has obtained from all the Board Members and the designated senior management personnel,
confirmation that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for Directors and senior management in
respect of the financial year 2007-08.

Place:Mumbai Nimesh N Kampani
Date:May 28,2008 Chairman & Managing Director

Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance

To the Members,

JM Financial Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by JM Financial Limited (the
Company), for the year ended on March 31, 2008, as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the
Company with stock exchange(s).

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify
that the Company has complied with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the above
mentioned Listing Agreement.

We state that no investor grievance(s) are pending for a period exceeding one month against the
Company as per the records maintained by the Shareholders Grievance Committee.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For and on behalf of
Khimji Kunver;ji & Co
Chartered Accountants

Shivji K Vikamsey
Partner
Membership No. 2242

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 28, 2008
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Auditors' Report

To
The Members of JM FINANCIAL LIMITED

l. We have audited the attached balance sheet of JM FINANCIAL LIMITED as at March 31, 2008
and also the profit and loss account and the cash flow statement for the year ended on that date
annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
Management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
ouraudit.

2%, We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that ouraudit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) (hereinafter
referredtoas ‘the Order’) issued by the Central Governmentin terms of Section 227 (4A) of the
Companies Act, 1956, (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Act’) we enclose in the Annexure a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4and 5 of the said Order.

4. Further to our commentsintheannexurereferredtoabove, we reportthat:

i We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

ii. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company sofarasitappears from our examination of those books;

iii. ~ The balance sheet, profit and loss account and cash flow statement dealt with by this
reportareinagreementwith the books ofaccount;
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iv. In our opinion, the balance sheet, profit and loss account and cash flow statement dealt with by
this report comply with theaccounting standards referred to in Section 21 | (3C) of the Act;

v. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2008
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2008 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 274
(1) (g) of the Act.

vi. Without qualifying our report, we draw attention to note no.l4 of schedule K, regarding
provision for Directors’ commission of Rs. 45 lakh made in the accounts, which is in excess of
the limits prescribed by the Act but payment whereof is not made pending approval of
shareholdersand Central Government.

vii.  Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the said accounts give the information required by the Actin the manner so required and give a
true andfair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India;

a) in the case of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2008;

b) in the case of the profitand loss account, of the profit of the Company for the year ended
onthatdate;and

c) in the case of cash flow statement, of the cash flows of the Company for the year ended
onthatdate.

Forand on behalf of
Khimji Kunver;ji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Shivji K. Vikamsey
Partner
Membership No.2242

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28,2008
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Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date of JM FINANCIAL LIMITED as at

March 31,2008

i) In view of the nature of activities carried on by the Company, clauses 4 (ii)(a) to (c), 4(viii), 4(xiii), 4(xiv) and
4(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to it.

ii) (a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

and situation of fixed assets.
(b)  The fixed assets have been physically verified by management at reasonable intervals. As informed,
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
(c)  The Company has not disposed off substantial part of its fixed assets during the year.
i) (@ Inrespectofthe unsecured loans granted by the Company in the earlier year to companies, firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Act, amounting to
Rs. 1,445 lakh, the Company has recovered the same during the year.

(b)  Inouropinionand according to the information and explanations given to us, the rate of interest and
other terms and conditions of the loan were not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.

(c)  The parties have repaid the principal amounts as stipulated and have also been regular in the
payment of interest to the Company.

(d)  Asthereis no overdue amount, the question of the Company taking reasonable step for recovery of
the principal amount and interest does not arise.

(e) The Company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured, from the companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Act. Hence clauses 4(jii) (f) and
(g) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal
control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business, for the
purchase of fixed assets. During the course of audit, no major weakness has been noticed in the internal
control system in respect of these areas.

V) (@)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the particulars

of all contracts or arrangements that need to be entered into the register maintained under Section
301 of the Act have been so entered.
(b)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions made

in pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered in the register maintained under Section 301 of
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the Act and exceeding the value of rupees five lacs in respect of any party during the year have been

made at price which are reasonable having regard to prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no deposits from the public
within the meaning of Reserve Bank of India Directives and sections 58A, 58AA or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under, have been accepted by the Company. We are
informed by the management that no order has been passed by the Company Law Board, National

Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other Tribunal.

vii)  Inour opinion, the internal audit function carried out by a firm of Chartered Accountants appointed during

the year is commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business

vii) (@) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed Provident Fund, Employee's State Insurance,
Income Tax, Service Tax, Cess and Investors Education and Protection Fund with appropriate
authorities and there are no arrears thereof as at March 31, 2008 for a period of more than six
months from the date they become payable. We are informed that statutory dues like Sales Tax,
Wealth Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and other statutory dues are not applicable to the

Company.

(b)  According to the information & explanations given to us, there is no outstanding due of Provident
Fund, Employee's State Insurance, Income Tax and Service Tax not deposited on account of any

dispute.

ix)  The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and it has not incurred any cash

losses in the current and immediately preceeding financial year.

X) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given to us, we are of the

opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions or banks.

xi)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records
produced to us, the Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of

pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

xii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given guarantee for loans

taken by others from banks or financial institutions.

xiii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short term basis have been used for long term

investment.

xiv) The Company has not made preferential allotment of shares to parties or companies covered in the

register maintained under Section 301 of the Act.
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xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no debentures have been issued during the

year.
xvi)  The Company has not raised any money through a public issue during the year.

xvii) Based on the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given to us, we report that no

fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

For and on behalf of
Khimji Kunverji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Shivji K. Vikamsey
Partner
Membership No. 2242

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28,2008
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(Rs. in lakh)
As at As at
Schedule 31.03.2008 31.03.2007

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital A 2,998.26 2,997.74
Reserves & surplus B 162,346.19 35,102.06
Unsecured loans 14.91 -
Deferred tax liability (Net) 11,494.73 -
Funds employed 176,854.09 38,099.80
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed assets D

Gross block 190.35 117.74

Less : provision for depreciation 37.18 26.90

Net block 153.17 90.84

Capital work-in-progress 3.52 -

156.69 90.84

Investments E 152,142.88 35,065.40
Current assets, loans & advances F 34,005.65 4901.53
Less: Current liabilities & provisions G 9,451.13 2,019.52
Net current assets 24,554.52 2,882.01
Deferred tax asset - 61.55
Funds utilised 176,854.09 38,099.80
Significant accounting policies & notes on accounts K

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our attached report of even date

For and on behalf of
Khimji Kunverji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Shivji K Vikamsey Nimesh N Kampani E A Kshirsagar

Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director
Membership No. 2242
Place: Mumbai Manish Sheth P K Choksi

Date: May 28, 2008 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Profit & loss account for the year ended March 31, 2008

(Rs. in lakh)
For the year For the year
Schedule ended ended
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
Income H 3,669.59 3,938.08
Expenditure 1 776.63 362.48
Profit before depreciation & interest 2,892.96 3,575.60
Less: Depreciation 10.28 2.6l
Interest 5.47 -
Profit before exceptional items & tax 2,877.21 3,572.99
Add: Exceptional items (Net) ) 172,301.85 -
Profit before tax 175,179.06 3,572.99
Provision for taxation
Current tax 27,600.00 40.00
Deferred tax 11,556.28 1.26
Fringe benefit tax 6.50 0.45
Tax adjustment of earlier years (0.58) -
Profit after tax 136,016.86 3,531.28
Add: Balance profit brought forward from earlier years 3,796.94 2,400.59
Profit available for appropriation 139,813.80 5,931.87
Appropriations
Proposed dividend
- Normal 1,500.00 1,500.00
- Special 6,000.00 =
Dividend tax 1,274.63 254.93
General reserve 15,000.00 380.00
Surplus carried to balance sheet 116,039.17 3,796.94
139,813.80 5,931.87
Earnings per share (EPS)
(Face value of Rs.10/- each) (Refer note 9)
Basic & Diluted EPS (in Rs.)
- Before exceptional items 9.59 12.04
- After exceptional items 453.39 12.04
Significant accounting policies & notes on accounts K

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

For and on behalf of
Khimji Kunverji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Shivji K Vikamsey Nimesh N Kampani
Partner Chairman & Managing Director
Membership No. 2242

E A Kshirsagar
Director

Manish Sheth
Chief Financial Officer

P K Choksi
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2008
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(Rs. in lakh)
As at As at
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
SCHEDULE A’
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised:
5,00,00,000 (5,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,000.00 5,000.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up :
3,00,00,000 (3,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up. 3,000.00 3,000.00
(Of the above 12,50,000 equity shares of Rs 10/- each issued for
consideration other than cash)

Less : Calls in arrears 1.74 2.26

2,998.26 2,997.74

SCHEDULE "B’

RESERVES & SURPLUS

Securities Premium

Balance as per last balance sheet 30,605.12 17,598.69
Add: Additions during the year 1.90 13,220.33
30,607.02 30,819.02
Less:- Expenses related to merger / preferential issue (Net of tax) - 213.90
30,607.02 30,605.12

General Reserve
Balance as per last balance sheet 700.00 320.00
Add: Transferred from profit and loss account 15,000.00 380.00
15,700.00 700.00
Surplus in Profit and Loss account 116,039.17 3,796.94
162,346.19 35,102.06

SCHEDULE 'C’

UNSECURED LOANS

Dues under finance lease 1491 =

14.91 -
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SCHEDULE 'F’
INVESTMENTS

JM FINANCIAL

(Rs. in lakh)

Sr.

No.

Particulars

As at 31.03.2008

As at 31.03.2007

Quantity

Amount

Quantity

Amount

I. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

UNQUOTED (unless otherwise stated)
Fully paid-up (unless otherwise stated)

A. TRADE INVESTMENTS

Investments in subsidiary companies
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
(unless otherwise stated)

JM Financial Consultants Private Limited
JM Financial Investment Managers Limited

JM Financial Commtrade Limited
(Refer note a)

JM Financial Ventures Limited
(Formerly Kampani Finance Limited)

JM Financial Products Private Limited

JM Financial Asset Management
Private Limited

JM Financial Holdings (Mauritius) Ltd
(Shares of USD | each)

JMF-BR Investments Holdings
(Mauritius) Ltd (Shares of USD | each)

Preference shares of Rs.10/- each
(unless otherwise stated)

JM Financial Commtrade Limited
(Refer note a) (9% Cumulative
preference shares)

JM Financial Products Private Limited
(9% Non cumulative optionally
convertible preference shares)

JM Financial Asset Management

Private Limited

(9% Optionally convertible redeemable
preference shares)

28,000,000
300,000

8,800,000

490,050,000
31,462,500

5,000

7,495

2,000,000

36,608.24
3l6.17

30,230.00

50,941.33
13,138.49

226

3.40

200.00

6,134,790
300,000
5,000,000

200,000

6,000,000
22,462,500

5,000

7,495

2,500,000

11,500,000

2,000,000

614.60
3l6.17
500.00

130.00

5,101.48
4,138.49

226

3.40

250.00

11,500.00

200.00
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INVESTMENTS (contd.) (Rs. in lakh)
Sr. Particulars As at 31.03.2008 As at 31.03.2007
No. Quantity Amount Quantity Amount
2 | JM Financial Holdings (Mauritius) Ltd 5,000 2.26 5,000 2.26
(Reedemable participating shares
of USD | each)
Investments in joint ventures
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
I3 | Infinite India Investment Management 800,000 238.00 10,000 1.00
Private Limited
4 | Morgan Stanley India Company Private Limited - - 4,900,000 1,266.88
Investments in associates
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
I5 |JM Financial Asset Reconstruction 86,950,000 8,695.00 = =
Company Private Limited (Refer note b)
16 | Financial Engineering Solutions 2,400,000 240.00 2,400,000 240.00
Private Limited
17 | JM Financial Trustee Company 25,000 2.50 25,000 2.50
Private Limited
140,617.65 24,269.02
B. OTHER INVESTMENTS
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each
(unless otherwise stated)
Quoted
18 | Development Credit Bank Limited = - 650,000 195.37
19 | Siemens Limited 30,000 289.03 - -
20 | Bajaj Auto Finance Limited - (Warrants) = = 2,011,558 965.55
2| | Supreme Infrastructure India Limited 238,000 190.40 238,000 190.40
Unquoted
22 | National Stock Exchange of India Limited 96,667 2,842.01 = =
23 | Uttaranchal Biodiesel Limited = = 1,000 4.50
24 | Uttaranchal Biodiesel Limited - - 87,889 395.50

(Cumulative convertible participating
preference share)
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INVESTMENTS (contd.) (Rs. in lakh)

Sr. Particulars As at 31.03.2008 As at 31.03.2007

No. Quantity Amount Quantity Amount
Venture Capital Fund Units

25 | Urban Infrastructure Opportunities Fund - - 900 450.00
(Face value Rs.1,00,000/- each,
partly paid Rs. 50,000/- each)

26 |JM Financial India Fund - Scheme 'A’, 1,869,787 1,869.79 1,440,000 1,440.00
Class D units of Rs.100/- each

27 |JM Financial India Fund - Scheme 'C', 470,213 470.21 = =
Class D units of Rs.100/- each

28 | JM Financial Property Fund 75,000 6,000.00 - -
Class 'C' units , partly paid up
(Face value Rs.10,000/- each,
partly paid Rs. 8,000/- each)

29 |JM Financial India Fund - Scheme 'A’, 500,000 5.00 - -
Class C unit of Re. | each

30 |[]JM Financial India Fund - Scheme 'B', 500,000 5.00 = =
Class C unit of Re. | each

31 |JM Financial India Fund lll - Scheme 'C', 100,000 1.00 - -
Class C units of Re.l each

32 |JM Financial India Fund Il - Scheme 'D’, 100,000 1.00 - -
Class C units of Re.l each

33 |JM Financial India Fund (Refer note c) NA 0.10 NA 0.10

34 |JM Financial India Fund Il (Refer note c) NA 0.10 NA 0.10

35 |[JM Financial Property Fund (Refer note c) NA 0.10 NA 0.10
Mutual Fund Units of Rs 10/- each

36 |[JM Equity Fund (Refer note c) 16,072 1.49 16,072 1.49

37 |JM Arbitrage Advantage Fund = = 25,000,000 2,500.00

38 |[JM Emerging Leaders Fund = = 5,719,733 600.00

39 |JM Auto Sector Fund - - 750,000 75.00

40 |JM Healthcare Sector Fund - - 818,431 82.50

152,292.88 31,169.63
Less: Provision for diminution in the 150.00 150.00
value of investments-unquoted

TOTAL (A) 152,142.88 31,019.63
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SCHEDULE 'F’

INVESTMENTS (contd.) (Rs. in lakh)
Sr. Particulars As at 31.03.2008 As at 31.03.2007
No. Quantity Amount Quantity Amount

I1. CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Mutual Fund Units of Rs 10/- each

41 |JM Floaters Fund - Short Term = = 934,400 94.27

42 | JM High Liquidity Fund Super Institutional Plan - - | 39,053,620 3,911.81

43 | JM High Liquidity Fund Institutional Plan - - 396,284 39.69
TOTAL (B) - 4,045.77
TOTAL (A +B) 152,142.88 35,065.40

Notes:

a) The entire Investment in equity and preference share capital in JM Financial Commtrade Limited has

been sold to JM Financial Services Private Limited, (a subsidiary) and its nominees.

b)  JM Financial Asset Reconstruction Company Private Limited, a subsidiary, has been classified as an
Associate of the Company since the Company's shareholding in the said Company has reduced to 49 %

subsequent to the balance sheet date.

) Represents initial contribution as a‘Sponsor’ towards setting up of JM Financial Sponsored Funds, which

cannotbe sold off/ transferred.

d) During the year 4,72,88,63,302 units (previous year |,15,56,78,977 units) amounting to Rs. 5,26,738.66
lakh (previous year Rs.1,15,992.24 lakh) and 4,80,15,35,769 units (previous year 1,09,13,11,295 units)
amounting to Rs. 5,34,823.68 lakh (previous year Rs. 1,09,521.21 lakh) of various schemes of mutual
funds were purchased and redeemed respectively.

e) Net asset value of the mutual fund units as on March 31,2008 is Rs. 2.87 lakh (previous year Rs. 3,322.89
lakh) against book value of Rs. .49 lakh (previous year Rs. 3,258.99 lakh).

f) Market value of the quoted investments as on March 31,2008 is Rs.377.14 lakh (previous year Rs. 514.22
lakh) against book value of Rs. 479.43 lakh (previous year Rs.1,160.92 lakh).

g) Market / Fair value of the current investments as on March 31,2008 is Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. 4,045.75
lakh) against book value of Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. 4,045.75 lakh).
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SCHEDULE 'F'
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES (Rs. in lakh)
As at As at
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash & bank balances
Cash on hand 0.07 0.04
Bank balance with scheduled banks
- In current accounts 47.71 82.01
- In fixed deposits 23,865.00 =
Other current assets
Income accrued but not due 129.20 131.55
TOTAL (A) 24,041.98 213.60
LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured considered good)
Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received * 110.81 141.99
Due from subsidiaries 252.51 53.22
Deposits
- Inter corporate deposit with subsidiaries & associates - 3,695.00
- Other deposits # 548.98 299.83
Advance tax & tax deducted at source (net of provisions) 9,051.37 497.89
TOTAL (B) 9,963.67 4,687.93
TOTAL (A+B) 34,005.65 4,901.53
* Includes
Amount due from officers - 10.35
Maximum amount due from officers at any time during the year 10.91 20.46
# Includes office premises deposit placed with a private limited
company in which a Director is a Director 170.00 170.00
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SCHEDULE 'G’
CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS (Rs. in lakh)
As at As at
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Dues to subsidiaries 98.12 75.76
Dues to associates - 0.19
Unclaimed dividend 22.67 15.58
(Investor education & protection fund to be credited as and when due)
Property deposits 100.00 100.00
Other liabilities 449.23 73.06
TOTAL (A) 670.02 264.59
PROVISIONS
For gratuity 6.48 -
For proposed dividend
- Normal 1,500.00 1,500.00
- Special 6,000.00 -
For corporate tax on proposed dividend 1,274.63 254.93
TOTAL (B) 8,781.11 1,754.93
TOTAL (A+B) 9,451.13 2,019.52
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SCHEDULE 'H’

INCOME (RS. in Iakh)
For the year For the year
ended ended
31.03.2008 31.03.2007

Profit on sale of investments

- On long term investments (Net) 1,044.63 -

- On current investments 3.72 =
Dividend

- On long term investments 24791 3,018.67

- On current investments 1,569.78 457.96
Interest 483.73 44].62

[Tax deducted at source Rs.106.21 lakh (previous year Rs. 104.56 lakh)]

Lease rent 13.73 13.73
[Tax deducted at source Rs. 2.87 lakh (previous year Rs. 3.08 lakh)]

Keyman insurance policy maturity proceeds 289.05 -
Miscellaneous income 17.04 6.10
TOTAL 3,669.59 3,938.08
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EXPENDITURE

JM FINANCIAL

(Rs. in lakh)

For the year

For the year

ended ended
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
Payment to and provisions for employees
- Salaries and Bonus 233.79 94.23
- Contribution to provident fund and other funds 8.08 2.40
- Staff Welfare 12.11 242
253.98 99.05
Rent 26.84 24.47
Rates & taxes 5.27 3.99
Insurance 443 14.18
Auditor's remuneration
- For audit fees 4.00 4.00
- For certification 0.50 0.92
- For limited review 1.50 1.50
- For tax audit 0.75 0.50
- For other matters - 2.45
- For reimbursement of service tax and out of pocket expenses 0.60 .18
Legal and professional fees 50.49 67.72
Support service charges 282.15 86.49
Directors' commission 45.00 30.00
Miscellaneous expenses 101.12 26.03
TOTAL 776.63 362.48
SCHEDULE ')
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Profit on sale of investments (Net) (Refer notes | & 2) 173,370.96 -
Payment to and provisions for employees (Special bonus) (69.11) -
Donation (1,000.00) -
TOTAL 172,301.85 -
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SCHEDULE 'K’
Significant accounting policies and notes on accounts
l. Significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements are in accordance with all material aspects of the Accounting Standards
(AS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) and the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Act’). The financial statements are
prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis, except where an impairment is made
and where a revaluation is carried out.

Accounting policies, not specifically referred to otherwise, are consistent with the generally
accepted accounting standards.

(b) Fixedassets

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost
comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use.

(c) Depreciation

Depreciation on all fixed assets, except for office premises and leased assets, is provided under
written-down value method and in the manner specified in Schedule XIV to the Act. Depreciation
on office premises is provided under straight-line method, whereas depreciation on leased assets is
provided as mentioned in para (k) hereunder. Depreciation on assets added / disposed off during
the year is provided on a pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition / disposal.

(d) Impairmentofassets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal / external factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying
cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value. The impairment loss is charged to profit and loss
account in the year in which the asset is identified as impaired. Reversal of impairment losses
recognised in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment losses
recognised for the assets no longer exist or have decreased.

(e) Investments

Investments are classified as long-term or current in accordance with AS 13 on 'Accounting for
Investments'. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in the
value of long-term investments is made to recognise a decline, other than temporary, in the value of
investments. The provision for diminution in the value of the quoted long-term investments and
currentinvestments is made to account the value at lower of cost and market value, determined on the
basis of the quoted prices of individual investment. Provision for diminution in the value of unquoted
long-term investments is made as per the Management's estimate.
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Significant accounting policies (contd.)

(f) Foreign currency transactions

As prescribed in AS 11 on 'Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates', foreign currency
transactions are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Foreign currency
monetary items are recorded using the closing rate of exchange at the end of the year. The resulting
exchange gain / loss is reflected in profit and loss account for the year. Other items, such as fixed
assets and investments, are carried at historical cost using the exchange rate at the date of the
transactions.

(g) Taxation
Tax expenses comprise current, deferred and fringe benefit tax.

Provisions for current tax is made on the basis of the estimated taxable income for the current
accounting year in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax for timing differences between the book and tax profits for the year is accounted for,
using the tax rates and laws that apply substantively as on the date of balance sheet. Deferred tax
assets, arising from timing differences, are recognised only if there is reasonable certainty that these
will be realised in future.

Fringe benefit tax is provided in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961.
(h) Revenuerecognition

Dividend income on investments is accounted for when the Company's right to receive dividend is
established. Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis.

(i) Contingentliabilities

Contingent liabilities not provided for are disclosed by way of notes on accounts.
(j)) Retirementand other benefits to employees

() Defined contribution plan

The Company makes a defined contribution to a provident fund which is recognised in the profit
and loss account on accrual basis.

(i)  Defined benefit plan

The Company's liabilities under the Payment of Gratuity Act are determined by actuarial
valuation made at the end of each financial year using the projected unit credit method.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss
account as income or expense respectively. Obligation is measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash flows using a discounted rate that is determined by reference to
market yields on the date of balance sheet on Government bonds where the currency and
terms of the Government bonds are consistent with the currency and estimated terms of the
defined benefit obligation.
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Significant accounting policies (contd.)
(k) Leasedassets

Assets acquired under finance lease are accounted for, at the inception of lease in accordance with
AS 19 on 'Accounting for Leases', at the lower of fair value of the assets or present value of
minimum lease payments. These assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease or over the useful life of the asset, whichever is shorter.

U] Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with AS 20 on ‘Earnings Per
Share’. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per
share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and potentially dilutive
equity shares outstanding at the year end.

(m) Employee stock option scheme

The Employee Stock Option Scheme (the 'Scheme') provides for grant of stock options of the
Company to employees and directors of the Company and its subsidaries. The accounting for the
Scheme is done in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Employees
Stock Option Scheme and Employees Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 1999. The Company
follows the intrinsic value method to account for its stock-based employee compensation plans as
per the Guidance Note on 'Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments', issued by the ICAL. If
options are granted at an exercise price, which is less than the fair market price of the underlying
equity shares, the excess of such fair market price over the exercise price of the options as at the
grant date is recognised as a deferred compensation cost.

Il. Notes on accounts

l. During the year, the Company sold its 49% equity stake in Morgan Stanley India Company Private
Limited to Morgan Stanley, following the termination of joint venture with Morgan Stanley, upon
receipt of the necessary regulatory approvals. As a result, profit on sale of investments (net of
expenses) amounting to Rs.1,73,586.1 | lakh has been accounted in the current financial year.

2. During the year, the Company sold 5,44,50,000 equity shares, representing 10% of the equity share
capital, in JM Financial Products Private Limited, to '|M Financial Group Employees' Welfare Trust',
a trust set-up for the benefit of the employees of '|M Financial Group'. These shares were sold at the
face value of Rs.10/- each resulting in a loss of Rs.215.15 lakh, which has been adjusted against the
profit on sale of investments (refer to note ), to arrive at the net profit on sale of investments.

3 The Compensation Committee (the Committee) of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on
December 27,2007 had granted 4,45,500 stock options exercisable for equivalent number of equity shares
of the face value of Rs. | 0/- each to the employees/ directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Committee, at its meeting held on March 29,2008 had cancelled all the stock options granted as above.
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Notes on accounts (contd.)

4 | Contingent Liability:
a) Contingent liability in respect of income tax disputed in appeal including departmental
appeals in respect of cases won by the Company, excluding interest thereon, is Rs. 331.71
lakh (previous year Rs. 313.55 lakh)
Il Commitments:
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for (net of advances) is Rs. 48.29 lakh (previous year Rs. 44.77 lakh)
b) Uncalled amount on investments in JM Financial Property Fund, Class C units is Rs. 1,500 lakh
(previous year nil)
5 Disclosure with respect to the Company's interest in joint ventures pursuant to AS 27 on ‘Financial Reporting
of Interests in Joint Venture’.
(Rs. in lakh)
Sr. Particulars Countryof | Proportionof | Country of Proportion of
No. incorporation| ownership |incorporation ownership
interestas at interestas at
March 31,2008 March 31,2007
a. | Nameofthe
joint venture company
Morgan Stanley India India - India 49%
Company Private Limited
(Formerly JM Morgan Stanley
Securities Private Limited)
(refer tonote |)
Infinite India Investment India 50% India 50%
Management Private Limited
b. | Aggregate of the
Company's sharein the
above venturesin:
Net fixed assets 20.05 430.03
Capital work in progress - 11.29
Investments 8.13 4,249.03
Net currentassets 83.19 6,519.21
Stock exchange memberships - 83.06
Deferred tax asset |.84 1.28
Income # 9,076.16 12,140.44
Expenses (Including 5,954.66 7,605.11
depreciation & taxation) #

Note:

The ownership interest for the current year and for the previous year has been calculated on the basis of the audited
accounts of the joint venture entities.

# includes unaudited figures for the first six months ended September 30, 2007 of Morgan Stanley India Company Private Limited.
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JM FINANCIAL

6 The issued, subscribed and paid-up capital and calls in arrears, inter alia, includes an amount in respect of
I'1,500 equity shares (previous year | 1,500 equity shares) held in abeyance under Section 206A of the Act.

7 Under the head "Current Liabilities & Provisions" no separate disclosure is made for outstanding
amount(s) due to Micro & Small and Medium Enterprises [SME]. The Company is in the process of

compiling the information with regard to Micro & SME parties.

8 Deferred tax assets/ (liability) at the year end comprise timing differences on account of:
(Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Fortheyear | Fortheyear
ended ended
March 31,2008/ March 31,2007
Depreciation (23.38) (21.03)
Expenses allowable under section 35DD 68.88 82.58
Expenditure 3.07 -
Investments (11,543.30) -
Total (11,494.73) 61.55
9 Earnings per share (EPS) is calculated as under:
(Rs. in lakh)
Sr.No. Particulars Fortheyear | Fortheyear
ended ended
March 31,2008 March 31,2007
A. Before exceptional items
Net profit as disclosed in profit and loss account 2,877.21 3,531.28
Weighted average no. of equity shares during the year 3,00,00,000 2,93,18,493
Basic & Diluted (EPS) (Rs.) 9.59 12.04
B. After exceptional items
Net profit as disclosed in profit and loss account 1,36,016.86 3,531.28
Weighted average no. of equity Shares during the year 3,00,00,000 2,93,18,493
Basic & Diluted (EPS) (Rs.) 453.39 12.04
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Notes on accounts (contd.)

10 Retirement benefits

I. Defined benefit plans

(Rs. in lakh)

Amount recognised in the balance sheet with respect to gratuity

For the year ended
March 31,2008

Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the year end 6.48
Fair value of plan assets -
Net liability / (asset) 6.48

(Rs. in lakh)
Amountrecognised in salary, wages and employee benefits For the year ended
in the profit and loss account with respect to gratuity March 31,2008
Current service cost 2.95
Interest on defined benefit obligations 0.24
Expected return on plan assets -
Netactuarial (gain) / loss recognised during the period 0.10
Net gratuity cost 3.29

(Rs. in lakh)
Actual return on plan assets For the year ended

March 31,2008

Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets

(Rs. in lakh)
Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value For the year ended
of the plan assets: March 31,2008
Opening defined benefit obligation # 3.19
Current service cost 2.95
Interest cost 0.24
Actuarial (gain) / loss 0.10
Liability assumed on amalgamation =
Benefits paid -
Closing defined benefit obligation 6.48

# Debited in the current year's profit and loss account as the liability is being calculated for the first time since no
employee had completed five years of service in the Company.
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Notes on accounts (contd.)

(Rs. in lakh)
Change in fair value of plan assets For the year ended
March 31,2008
Opening fair value of the plan assets -
Expected return on plan assets =
Actuarial (gain) / loss -
Assets acquired on amalgamation -
Contributions by the employer -
Benefits paid -
Closing fair value of the plan assets =
(Rs. in lakh)
Investment details of plan assets For the year ended
March 31,2008
Investment details of plan assets =
Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date For the year ended
March 31,2008
Discount rate 7.50%
Estimated rate of return on plan assets -
Valuation assumptions:
For the purpose of arriving at the liability, the following assumptions have been considered:
® Rate of discounting: 7.5% per annum
o The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, taking account of
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors in the employment market.
] The above information is certified by the actuary. This being the first year of implementation, figures

for the previous year have not been given.
Il. Defined contribution plans

®  Amountrecognised as an expense and included in the Schedule | - ‘Contribution to provident fund &
other funds’ Rs.8.08 lakh (previous year Rs. 2.40 lakh)

I Lease transaction:
Finance lease

During the year, the Company has taken certain vehicles under the finance lease agreement. The tenure of
lease agreements is for 36 months with an option to prepayment / foreclosure. The minimum lease rentals
outstanding with respect to these assets are as under:
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Notes on accounts (contd.)

Finance lease (contd.) (Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Total minimum lease Lease finance Present value of the
payment outstanding | charges not due | minimum lease payment
as at March 31, 2008 as at March 31, 2008
Not later than | year 11.77 3.17 8.60
) ) )
Later than | year but 17.20 2.29 14.91
not later than 5 years (-) (-) -)
Total 28.97 5.46 23.51
) ) )
(Figures in brackets are for the previous year)
2 Loans & Advances includes:
(Rs. in lakh)
Amount receivable from Balance as at | Balance as at| Maximum | Maximum
March 31, 2008|March 31, 2007 amount amount
outstanding | outstanding
during during the
the year | previous year
Subsidiaries
JM Financial Consultants Private Limited - 1,245.00 1,245.00 1,245.00
JM Financial Services Private Limited 115.47 - 115.47 3,025.00
JM Financial Investment Managers Limited 8.90 253.22 253.22 1,600.00
JM Financial Commtrade Limited 37.59 - 37.59 55.00
JM Financial Ventures Limited 0.46 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00
JM Financial Products Private Limited 7.72 - 26.58 8,650.00
JM Financial Securities Private Limited 247 - 247 -
JM Financial ASK Securities Private Limited 8.12 - 8.12 -
JM Financial Asset Management Private Limited 19.51 - 19.51 -
Others
Infinite India Investment
Management Private Limited 4.52 750.00 750.00 750.00
JM Financial Asset Reconstruction
Company Private Limited 47.75 - 47.75 -
Total 252.51 3,748.22 4,005.71 16,825.00
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I3 The Company had raised Rs. 30,985 lakh in earlier years by way of issue of equity shares on a preferential
basis. The proceeds of the issue have been fully utilised, as per the details given below, towards the
purpose for which the amount was raised.

Utilisation (Rs. in lakh)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2008 March 31,2007
Shares issue expenses 329 329
Investments in subsidiaries 24,799 19,193
Inter corporate deposit placed with subsidiaries / associates - 3,670
Other proprietary investments 5,687 3,627
Security deposit — leased premises 170 170
Unutilised funds deployed in mutual funds - 3,996
Total 30,985 30,985
[4  Managerial remuneration:
() Computation of net profit as per Sections 349 & 350 of the Act.
(Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2008 March 31,2007
Profit before tax as per profit and loss account 1,75,179.06 3,572.99
Add: Directors' sitting fees 2.89 2.58
Managerial remuneration paid / provided 65.22 66.19
1,75,247.17 3,641.76
Less: Profit on sale of investments (Net) 1,74,419.31 -
Profit available for Directors' commission 827.86 3,641.76
Directors' commission calculated @ 3% 24.84 109.25
Directors' commission proposed by the Board and provided for 45.00 30.00
(b)  Remuneration paid to the Manager
(Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2008 March 31,2007
Salary and bonus 19.07 35.51
Contribution to provident fund and other funds [.15 0.67
Total 20.22 36.19
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Notes on accounts (contd.)

Provision for payment of Directors' commission of Rs. 45.00 lakh has been made in the annual accounts.
This amount which is in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act, and hence is subject to the approval
of the shareholders and the central government. The Company has not paid the commission amount to the
Directors and the same will be paid only on receipt of the above-mentioned approvals.

I5  The Company, through its subsidiary, joint venture and associate companies, is mainly engaged in the financial
services activity, which in the context of AS |7 on ‘Segment Reporting’ is considered as the only segment.

[6  Disclosurein respectof related parties pursuantto AS - I8 on ‘Related Party Disclosure’
As perannexurel

7  Statement of cash flow pursuant to AS 3 on 'Cash Flow Statements’
As perannexurell

I8  No further information pursuant to paragraphs 4C & 4D of the Part Il of the Schedule VI to the Act has
been given, as the same does not apply to the Company.

19 Expenditure /amount spent in foreign currency (On accrual basis):
(Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Fortheyear Fortheyear
ended ended

March31, 2008

March31,2007

Purchase of investment 7,942.00 =
Board meeting fees 0.05 -
Other expenditures - 4.07
Total 7,942.05 4.07
Amount remitted in foreign currency on account of dividend :
(Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Fortheyear Fortheyear
ended ended
March31, 2008 March31,2007
Dividend amount 94.92 52.50
Number of shareholders 3 3
Number of shares 18,98,446 21,00,000
20  Interest expense includes Rs.2.08 lakh (previous year nil) towards interest on fixed loan and Rs. 2.98 lakh
(previous year nil) towards interest on loan other than fixed loan.
21 Previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.
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Notes on accounts (contd.)

Annexure | to point no. 16 of schedule K

Disclosure in respect of related parties pursuant to AS |8 on ‘Related Party Disclosure’:

A. Listofrelated parties

)

1))

B. 1)
1))

1))

Parties where control exists :

a)

Subsidiaries

JM Financial Consultants Private Limited (IB)

JM Financial Services Private Limited (Financial Services)
JM Financial Investment Managers Limited (Investment Managers)
JM Financial Commtrade Limited (Commtrade)

JM Financial Ventures Limited (SSF)

JM Financial Products Private Limited (NBFC)

JM Financial Securities Private Limited (FID)

JM Financial ASK Securities Private Limited (IED)

JM Financial Asset Management Private Limited (AMC)
JM Financial Holdings (Mauritius) Ltd (JMFM)

JMF-BR Investments Holdings (Mauritius) Ltd (JMFBR)

Other Parties with whom the Company has entered into transactions during the year:

a)

b)

Jointventures
Infinite India Investment Management Private Limited (Infinite)

Associates:

JM Financial Asset Reconstruction Company Private Limited (ARC)
Financial Engineering Solutions Private Limited (FES)

JM Financial Trustee Company Private Limited (Trustee)

Key management personnel:
Mr. Nimesh N Kampani (NNK)

Relative of key management personnel:

Mr. Ashith N Kampani (ASNK)

Enterprise over which Key management personnel is able to exercise significant
influence:

J.M. Financial & Investment Consultancy Services Private Limited (JMFICS)

No amounts in respect of related parties have been written back during the year.

Amount provided for diminution in the value of investments in respect of related parties is Rs. |50
lakh (previous year Rs. 150 lakh)

Related party relationships have been identified by the management and relied upon by the auditors.
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Notes on accounts (contd.)
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Notes on accounts (contd.)
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Notes on accounts (contd.)

Annexure Il to point no.|7 of schedule K
Statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2008

JM FINANCIAL

(Rs. in lakh)

Particulars

For the year
ended
March 31, 2008

For the year
ended
March 31, 2007

A  Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit / (Loss) before tax

Adjustment for

Depreciation

(Profit)/ Loss on sale of investments
Dividend income

Sundry liabilities written back
Interest expense

Provision for gratuity

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustment for

Trade & other receivables

Trade payables

Cash generated from / (used in) operations
Direct taxes paid

Net cash from / (used in) operating activities

B Cash flow from investment activities
Purchase of mutual fund units
Sale of mutual fund units
Purchase of investments
Sale of Investments
Purchase of assets
Income from dividend

Net cash from / (used in) investment activities

C Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital / premium

Share issue expenses

175,179.06

10.28
(174,419.30)
(1,817.68)
(17.01)

2.99

6.48
(1,055.18)

(414.91)
422.43
(1,047.66)
(36,159.40)
(37,207.06)

(526,738.66)
534,823.68
(139,442.18)
188,698.98
(76.13)
1,817.68
59,083.37

243

3,572.99

2.6l

(3,476.62
(5.73

)
)

93.24

(1,899.58)
15.46
(1,790.87)
(125.17)
(1,916.04)

(115,992.24)
109,521.21
(27,891.58)
14,113.55
(9.24)
3,476.62
(16,781.68)

13,429.65
(317.12)
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Notes on accounts (contd.)

Annexure Il to point no.l7 of schedule K (contd.)

Particulars

Placement of inter corporate deposit
Repayment of inter corporate deposit placed
Unsecured loans

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Interest paid on borrowings

Dividend paid including corporate tax

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase in cash & cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents (opening)

Cash & cash equivalents (closing)

(Rs. in lakh)
For the year | For the year
ended ended

March 31, 2008 | March 31, 2007
(1,230.00) (29,650.00)
4,925.00 36,105.00
1491 -
7,942.00 -
(7,942.00) -
(2.99) -
(1,754.93) (855.19)
1,954.42 18,712.34
23,830.73 14.63
82.05 67.42
23,912.78 82.05

As per our attached report of even date
For and on behalf of

Khimji Kunverji & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Shivji K Vikamsey

Nimesh N Kampani

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

E A Kshirsagar

Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director

Membership No. 2242

Place: Mumbai Manish Sheth
Date: May 28, 2008 Chief Financial Officer

P K Choksi

Company Secretary
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Additional information pursuant to Part IV of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956.

Balance Sheet Abstract and General Business Profile
(Rs. in thousand)

Registration details

Registration no.: L67120MH 1986PLC038784 Statecode: | |
Balance sheet date: 31-03-2008

Capital raised during the year

Publicissue -
Rights issue -
Bonus issue =
Private placement -
Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds

Total liabilities 1,76,85,409
Total assets 1,76,85,409
Sources of funds

Paid-up capital 2,99,826
Reserves and surplus 1,62,34,619
Deferred tax liabilities 11,49,473
Secured loans -
Unsecured loans 1,491
Application of funds

Net fixed assets 15,317
Capital work-in-progress 352
Investments 1,52,14,288
Deferred tax assets 3
Net currentassets 24,55,452
Miscellaneous expenditure -
Accumulated losses -
Performance of the Company

Turnover (Including other income) 3,66,959
Total expenditure 79,238
Profit before exceptional items & tax 2,87,721
Exceptional items (Net) 1,72,30,185
Profit before tax 1,75,17,906
Profit after tax 136,01,686
Earnings per share (Before exceptional items) in Rs. 9.59
Earnings per share (After exceptional items) in Rs. 453.39
Dividend rate % 250
Generic names of principal products of the company

Item code no. (ITC code) Notapplicable
Product description Notapplicable
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JM FINANCIAL

Auditors' Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the attached consolidated balance sheet of JM Financial Limited (the
Company) and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates (collectively referred to as
‘)M Financial Group’),asatMarch 31,2008 and also the consolidated profitandlossaccount
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended on that date annexed thereto.
These financial statements are the responsibility of Company's managementand have been
prepared by the management on the basis of separate financial statements and other
financial information regarding components. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
thesefinancial statements based on our audit.

We conducted ourauditinaccordance with the auditing standards generally acceptedin India.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. Webelieve thatourauditprovidesareasonablebasisfor our opinion.

We report that the Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) have been prepared by the
Company in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 2I
‘Consolidated Financial Statements’, AS 23 ‘Accounting for Investment in Associates in
Consolidated Financial Statements’, and AS 27 ‘Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint
Ventures’,issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

(a) Includedin this CFSareassetsof Rs. I519.17 croreasatMarch 31,2008, revenues of Rs.
688.18 crore and net cash inflows of Rs. 126.13 crore for the year then ended, which
have not been audited by us. These have been audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us,and our opinion so far as it relates to the amountsincluded in
respectofthese entities, is based solely onreports of those respectiveauditors.

(b) Furtherthe CFSincludesassets of Rs.0.03 crore, revenues of Rs.86.13 croreand net
cash inflow of Rs. 0.02 crore of a subsidiary and loss of Rs. 15.5I crore of associates
which are based on unaudited financial statements of the subsidiaries, joint ventures
&associatesasreferredtoin notes | (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), (f) & (g) of Part 1l of Schedule
K and our opinion in so far as it relates to those amounts is based solely on such
unauditedfinancial statements.
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5. Without qualifying our report, we draw attention to note no.7 of schedule K, regarding provision for
managerial remuneration ofRs. 6.5 crore (previousyearRs.5.14 crore) madeintheaccounts, whichisin
excess of the limits prescribed by the Companies Act, 1956 but payment whereof is not made pending
approvalofshareholders/Central Government, asapplicable.

6. Based on our audit and on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial
statements/ management's certification and on other financial information of the components
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we are of the
opinion that the attached consolidated financial statements, read together with para 4 above,
giveatrueandfairviewin conformity with theaccounting principles generally acceptedin India:

(a) in the case of the consolidated balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the JM Financial
GroupasatMarch31,2008;

(b) inthe case of the consolidated profit and loss account, of the profit for the year of the |M
Financial Group ended on that date; and

(c) inthecase of the consolidated cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended of
theJMFinancial Group on thatdate.

Forand onbehalf of
Khimji Kunverji & Co

Chartered Accountants

Shivji K Vikamsey
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: May 28,2008 Membership No. 2242
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Consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2008

JM FINANCIAL

(Rs . in crore)

As at As at
Schedule 31.03.2008 31.03.2007

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital A 29.98 29.98
Reserves & surplus B 1,759.95 545.11
Capital reserve on consolidation 80.34 12.72

1,870.27 587.81
Minority interest 100.70 138.05
Loan funds C 1,022.74 389.67
Deferred tax liability 115.00 -
Funds employed 3,108.71 1,115.53
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Goodwill on consolidation 107.65 0.11
Fixed assets D
Gross block 91.32 71.05
Less : Accumulated depreciation 55.35 48.44
Net block 35.97 22.61
Capital work in progress 3.08 3.83

39.05 26.44

Investments E 889.76 241.78
Current assets, loans & advances F 2,660.38 1,423.49
Less: Current liabilities & provisions G 589.45 577.73
Net current assets 2,070.93 845.76
Deferred tax assets 1.32 1.45
Funds utilised 3,108.71 1,115.53
Significant accounting policies & notes on accounts K

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our attached report of even date

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Khimji Kunveriji & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Shivji K Vikamsey Nimesh N Kampani E A Kshirsagar
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director
Membership No. 2242

Place: Mumbai Manish Sheth P K Choksi
Date: May 28, 2008 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Consolidated profit & loss account for the year ended March 31, 2008
(Rs . in crore)

For the year | For the year
Schedule ended ended
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
Income
Fees, brokerage & commission 540.48 372.76
Securities funding and fund based activities 86.24 26.70
626.72 399.46
Interest & other income H 115.57 44.59
Total income 742.29 444.05
Expenditure 1 407.48 246.14
Profit before depreciation & interest 334.81 197.91
Less: Depreciation 9.79 7.04
Interest 32.83 7.84
Profit before provision on standard assets 292.19 183.02
Provision on standard assets 12.04 0.09
Profit before exceptional items & tax 280.15 182.94
Add: Exceptional items (Net) ) 1,509.60 -
Profit before tax 1,789.75 182.94
Provision for taxation
Current tax 338.73 59.79
Deferred tax 115.32 (0.58)
Fringe benefit tax 1.42 0.76
Tax adjustment of earlier years (Net) 0.06 0.06
Profit after tax 1,334.22 122.91
Less: Share of minority interest (Net) 9.84 28.73
Add: Share of profit / (loss) in associate companies (17.32) (3.31)
Net consolidated profit 1,307.06 90.87
Add: Balance profit brought forward from earlier year 165.30 108.38
Less: Adjustment as per AS |5 and others 0.83 -
Profit available for appropriation 1,471.53 199.25
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Consolidated profit & loss account for the year ended March 31, 2008 (contd.)

(Rs. in crore)

For the year | For the year
Schedule ended ended
31.03.2008 31.03.2007

Appropriations

Proposed dividend

- Normal 15.00 15.00

- Special 60.00 -
Corporate tax on proposed dividend

- of the company 12.75 2.55

- of the subsidiaries 0.08 2.85

General reserve 150.00 8.70

Statutory reserve 13.15 -

Debenture redemption reserve (4.85) 4.85

Surplus carried to balance sheet 1,225.40 165.30

1,471.53 199.25

Earnings per share (EPS)
(Face value of Rs.10/- each) (Refer note 8)

Basic & Diluted EPS

- Before exceptional items 50.04 30.99
- After exceptional items 435.69 30.99
Significant accounting policies & notes on accounts K

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our attached report of even date

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Khimji Kunveriji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Shivji K Vikamsey Nimesh N Kampani E A Kshirsagar
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director

Membership No. 2242

Place: Mumbai Manish Sheth P K Choksi
Date: May 28, 2008 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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(Rs. in crore)

As at As at

31.03.2008 31.03.2007
SCHEDULE A’
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised:
5,00,00,000 (5,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 50.00 50.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up :
3,00,00,000 (3,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up. 30.00 30.00
(Of the above 12,50,000 equity shares of Rs 10/- each issued for
consideration other than cash)
Less : Calls in arrears (0.02) (0.02)
TOTAL 29.98 29.98
SCHEDULE "B’
RESERVES & SURPLUS
Securities premium 351.22 354.77
Capital redemption reserve 1.79 1.79
General reserve 168.40 18.40
Debenture redemption reserve - 4.85
Statutory reserve 13.15 -
Surplus in profit and loss account 1,225.40 165.30
Currency translation reserve (0.01) #
TOTAL 1,759.95 545.11
# Below Rs. 50,000/-
SCHEDULE 'C’
LOAN FUNDS
Secured loans
Vehicle loans - 0.03
TOTAL (A) - 0.03
Unsecured loans
Short term
Non convertible debentures 380.00 368.00
Commercial paper 640.00 -
Others 2.15 21.27
Long term
Dues under finance lease 0.59 0.37
TOTAL (B) 1,022.74 389.64
TOTAL (A +B) 1,022.74 389.67
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SCHEDULE 'E'
INVESTMENTS (Rs. in crore)
Sr. Particulars As at 31.03.2008 As at 31.03.2007
No. Quantity Amount Quantity Amount
1 Long term investments
A Trade investments
| JM Financial Trustee Company 25,000 0.03 25,000 0.03
Private Limited
Add: Share of profit for the previous years 0.68 0.60
Add: Share of profit for the current year 0.22 0.08
0.93 0.71
2 Financial Engineering Solutions 24,00,000 2.40 24,00,000 2.40
Private Limited
(Incl. goodwill on investment Rs. 0.40 crore)
Add: Share of (loss) for the previous years (1.14) (0.86)
Add: Share of (loss) for the current year (0.33) (0.28)
0.93 1.26
3 JM Financial Asset Reconstruction 8,69,50,000 86.95 = =
Company Private Limited
Add: Share of (loss) for the current period (1.81)
85.14 -
4 JM Financial Asset Management = = 2,24,62,500 4].38
Private Limited
(Incl. goodwill on investment Rs. 17.56 crore)
Add: Share of (loss) for the previous years - (3.10)
Add: Share of (loss) for the current year (8.81)
(Became a subsidiary during the year) - 29.47
5 JM Financial Ventures Limited = = 200,000 1.30
(Formerly Kampani Finance Limited)
(Incl. goodwill on investment Rs. 0.01 crore)
Add : Share of profit for the current period 5.69
(Became a subsidiary during the year) - 6.99
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JM FINANCIAL

INVESTMENTS (Rs. in crore)
Sr. Particulars As at 31.03.2008 As at 31.03.2007
No. Quantity Amount Quantity Amount
B Other investments
I Equity shares
a) Quoted 307.68 12.34
b) Unquoted 63.33 1.95
2 Preference shares 15.53 6.13
3 Venture capital units® / 106.66 39.4
Securitised assets
4 Equity oriented mutual fund schemes 7.59 39.15
587.79 137.46
Less: Provision for diminution in the
value of investments-unquoted 1.50 0.62
586.29 136.84
1 Current investment
- Mutual fund units 303.47 104.94
TOTAL 889.76 24178

* Includes initial contribution as a sponsor towards setting up of JM Financial Sponsored Fund which
cannot be sold / transferred.
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(Rs. in crore)

As at As at
31.03.2008 31.03.2007

SCHEDULE ‘P
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES

CURRENT ASSETS
Stock in trade 4.87 0.99
Sundry debtors (Unsecured considered good)

- Outstanding for a period exceeding six months 1.27 0.75
- Others 289.79 195.81
Cash & bank balances
Cash on hand 0.04 0.02

Bank balance with schedule banks:

- In current accounts 68.73 83.15

- In fixed deposits 833.62 431.71
TOTAL (A) 1,198.32 712.43
LOANS & ADVANCES

Loans & advances recoverable

- Secured 1,180.45 470.46

- Unsecured considered good 96.63 23.60
Deposits 56.38 98.58
Advance tax & tax deducted at source (Net of provisions) 127.11 22.83
Others 1.49 95.59
TOTAL (B) 1,462.06 711.06
TOTAL (A +B) 2,660.38 1,423.49
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(Rs. in crore)

As at As at
31.03.2008 31.03.2007

SCHEDULE ‘G’
CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry creditors 400.35 532.31
Unclaimed dividend 0.23 0.16
Due under finance lease 0.76 0.43
Other liabilities 81.50 2441
TOTAL (A) 482.84 557.31
PROVISIONS
For gratuity 4.0l 2.74
For leave encashment 2.64 -
For provision on standard assets 12.13 0.09
For proposed dividend

- Normal 15.00 15.00

- Special 60.00 -
For corporate tax on proposed dividend

- of the company 12.75 2.55

- of the subsidiary 0.08 0.05
TOTAL (B) 106.61 20.42
TOTAL (A +B) 589.45 577.73

(Rs. in crore)

For the year

For the year

ended ended
31.03.2008 31.03.2007

SCHEDULE ‘H’
INTEREST & OTHER INCOME
Dividend 34.45 12.24
Interest 51.38 14.22
Profit on sale of investments (Net) 12.34 6.52
Gain on proprietary trading (Net) 7.01 -
Miscellaneous income 10.39 1.6l
TOTAL 115.57 44.59
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(Rs. in crore)

For the year For the year
ended ended
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
SCHEDULE
EXPENDITURE
Payments to and provisions for employees:
- Salaries and bonus 219.77 126.06
- Contribution to provident fund and other funds 4.48 2.56
- Staff welfare 2.86 1.70
227.11 130.32
Subbrokerage, fees and commission 97.34 50.86
Rent, rates and taxes 21.27 17.36
Fund expenses 16.27 3.99
Legal and professional fees 9.38 5.64
Telephone and mobile expenses 5.59 5.39
Repairs and maintenance 5.46 5.81
Travelling expenses 5.43 4.56
Membership and subscription 3.87 1.29
Electricity 3.37 2.16
Provision for doubtful debts 1.0l 1.00
Insurance expenses 0.56 0.25
Donation 041 0.62
Bad debts written off 0.41 0.38
Auditors remuneration 0.51 0.54
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuations 0.12 -
Loss on sale of assets 0.10 -
Research expenses - 5.39
Loss from proprietary trading - 1.64
Directors' commission 0.45 0.30
Miscellaneous expenses 12.39 11.03
411.05 248.53
Less: Recovery of expenses 3.57 2.39
TOTAL 407.48 246.15
SCHEDULE ‘)
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Profit on sale of investments (Net) (Refer note 2) 1,629.89 -
Payment to and provisions for employees (Special bonus) (110.29) -
Donation (10.00) -
TOTAL 1,509.60 -
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SCHEDULE'K’
Significantaccounting policiesand noteson accounts
1) Significantaccountingpolicies

i. Basisof preparation:

The consolidated financial statements (CFS) are in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles in India and comply with the Accounting Standards (AS) 21 on
‘Consolidated Financial Statements’, AS 23 on ‘Accounting for Investments in Associates in
Consolidated Financial Statements’ and AS 27 on ‘Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint
Ventures’issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl).

ii. Principles of consolidation:

a) The CFS comprises of the financial statements of JM Financial Limited (the Reporting
Company)anditssubsidiaries,associatesandjointventure companies.

b) Thefinancial statements of the Reporting Company, its subsidiaries and joint ventures
(to the extent of the share of the Reporting Company) have been combined on a line-
by-line basis by adding together similar items of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Intra group balances and transactions have been eliminated on
consolidation exceptforjointventure companies.

) The net profit of the subsidiaries for the year attributable to the share of minority
interestisidentified and adjusted againsttheincomeinthe CFSinordertoarriveatthe
netincome attributable to the interest of shareholders of the Company. Similarly the
amount attributable to the share of minority interest in net assets of consolidated
subsidiariesisidentified and presented in the CFS, separate from the liabilities and the
equity ofthe Company.

d) The difference between the cost of investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, over the amount of net assets at the time of acquisition of the shares in the
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is recognised / disclosed in the financial
statementsas goodwill or capital reserve, as the case may be.

ili. Revenuerecognition:

Revenue is recognised at the point when there is reasonable certainty of its ultimate
realisation/ collection.

a) Revenue from Investment Banking business, which mainly includes the lead manager's
fees, selling commission, underwriting commission, fees for mergers, acquisitions and
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Significant accounting policies (contd.)

advisory assignments and arranger's fees for mobilising debt funds is recognised when
services for the transactions are determined to be completed or when specific
obligationsare determinedto befulfilledas setforth under the terms of engagement.

b) Commission income from executing client transactions on the secondary market in
‘Cash’ and ‘Futures and Options’ segments is recognised in the accounts on the trade
date.

) Brokerage earned from primary market operations, i.e., procuring subscription from
investors for public offerings of companies are recorded on determination of the
amount due to the company, once the allotment of securities is completed. Brokerage
earned for mobilising bonds, fixed deposits for companies and funds for mutual funds
from investors is recorded on monthly, quarterly or annual basis as set forth in terms
ofthe engagement.

d) Income from structured products including processing fees, IPO financing and margin
financing revenues, income from depository participant business and income from
portfolio management services is recognised when the services are determined to be

completed.

e) Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is
established.

f) Interestincomeis recognised onaccrual basis.

iv. Use ofestimates:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted
accounting principles requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying
financial statements are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and
circumstances as of the date of the financial statements. Any difference between actual
numbersandsuch estimatesare recordedin thefinancial statementsforfuture periods.

v. Fixed assetsand depreciation:
a) Ownedtangibleassets:

Tangible fixed assets are stated at their original cost of acquisition less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises all costs incurred to bring
theassets to their locationand working condition.
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Significant accounting policies (contd.)

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis for the period of use. Most of the
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates follow the straight-line method (SLM), based
on the management's estimate of useful lives of the fixed assets, or at the SLM rates
prescribedinSchedule XIV to the Act,whicheveris higher,asmentioned hereunder:

Asset Estimated useful life
Leaseholdimprovements [0years
Telecommunication equipment Syears

Furniture, fixturesand equipments 5to |0years

Microcomputersandapplicationsoftware  5Syears

Motor vehicles Syears

Assets costingRs. 5,000/-orlessaredepreciatedat 100%.

Some of the subsidiaries follow the WDV method of depreciation at the rates
prescribedinthe schedule XIV oratahigherratei.e.for leaseholdimprovementat the
rateof 18.10%

b) Ownedintangibleassets:

Intangible fixed assetsare stated at their cost ofacquisition orinternal generation, less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. An intangible asset is
recognised, where it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the
assets will flow to the enterprise and where its cost can be reliably measured. The
depreciation amount of the intangible assets is allocated over the best estimate of its
useful life onastraight-line basis.

The Company capitalises software and related implementation cost where it is
reasonably estimated that the software has an enduring useful life. The software is
depreciated overits useful life (5 years) as per managements’ estimate.

c) Financelease:

Assets acquired under the finance lease are accounted for at the inception of lease in
accordance with AS 19 on 'Leases' at the lower of the fair value of the asset and the
present value of the minimum lease payments. At the end of the lease term, the asset
reverts to the lessor and hence they are fully depreciated on a straight-line basis over
theleasetermortheir useful life, whicheverisshorter.

Income fromtheleasedassetsisaccountedforintheyearinwhich thelease rentalsfall
due, by applyingtheinterest rateimplicitinthe lease to the netinvestmentinthelease
duringthe period.
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Significant accounting policies (contd.)

d) Operatinglease:

Operatinglease payments arerecognisedas expenditurein the profitandlossaccount
onastraight-line basis, whichis representative of the time pattern user's benefit.

e) Impairmentofassets:

An asset is considered as impaired in accordance with AS 28 on 'Impairment of
Assets' when on the balance sheet date there are indications of impairment in the
carryingamountoftheassets, or where applicable the cash generatingunit to which
the asset belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the asset's net
selling price and value in use). The carrying amount is reduced to the level of
recoverable amount and the reduction is recognised as an impairment loss in the
profitandlossaccount.

vi. Investments:

Investments are classified as long-term or current in accordance with AS 13 on
'Accounting for Investments'. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However,
provision for diminution in value of long-term investments is made to recognise a decline
other than temporary in the value of the investments. The provision for diminution in the
value of the quoted long-term investments and the current investments is made to
account the value at lower of the cost and market value, determined on the basis of the
quoted prices of individual investment. Provision for diminution in the value of unquoted
long-terminvestmentsis madeas per the management's estimate.

vii. Securitiesheldasaresultofunderwriting/stock-in-trade
Thesesecuritiesarevaluedatlower of costor marketvalue.
viii. Taxation:
Tax expense comprises current, deferredandfringe benefit tax.

Provision for current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current
accountingyearinaccordance withthe provisions ofIncome Tax Act, [ 961.

Deferred tax for timing differences between the book and tax profits for the year is
accounted for, using the tax rates and laws that apply substantively as on the date of balance
sheet. Deferred tax assetsarising from timing differences are recognised to the extent there
isreasonable certainty thatthese would be realisedin future.

Fringe benefittaxis providedforinaccordancewith the provisions ofIncome TaxAct, 1961.
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Significant accounting policies (contd.)
ix. Retirementbenefits:
a) Defined contribution plan

The Company makes defined contribution to the provident fund, which is recognised
intheprofitandlossaccountonanaccrual basis.

b) Defined benefitplan

The Company's liabilities under the Payment of Gratuity Actare determined on the
basis of actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year using the projected
unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss account as income or expense respectively. Obligation is measured
at the present value of estimated future cash flows using a discounted rate that is
determined by reference to market yields on the date of balance sheet on
government bonds where the currency and terms of the government bonds are
consistentwith the currency and estimated terms of the defined benefit obligation.

) Short-term leave encashment

The Company provides for short-term accumulated compensated absences as at
balance sheet date using the full-cost method to the extent that the leave will be
utilised. The leave encashmenton separationis paid on the basicsalary.

X. Foreignsubsidiaries

The translation of accounts of foreign subsidiaries is doneinaccordance with AS | | on “The
Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”. The operations of those subsidiaries thatare
considered as non-integral have been converted in Indian rupees at the following exchange
rates:

a) Revenueandexpenses: Attheaverage exchange rate duringthe period.
b)  Allassetsandliabilities: The exchangerate prevailingat the end of the period.

The resultant translation exchange difference has been transferred to foreign currency

translationreserve.
xi. Foreigncurrencytransactions

Asprescribedin AS | lon 'Effects of Changesin Foreign Exchange Rates’, foreign currency
transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.
Foreign currency monetary items are recorded using the closing rate of exchange at the
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Significant accounting policies (contd.)

end of the year. The resulting exchange gain/loss is reflected in the profit & loss account.
Other items, such as fixed assets and investments, are carried in terms of historical cost

using the exchange rateat the date of transactions.
xii. Earningspershare

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with AS 20 on
‘Earnings Per Share’. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax

by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding duringtheyear.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or
other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and
potentially dilutive equity shares outstandingattheyear end.

xiii. Provisions,contingentliabilitiesand contingentassets

The Company creates provisions when there is a present obligation as a result of a past
event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there
isa possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosureis made.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. Ifitisnolonger probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle
the obligation, the provisionsarereversed.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent
assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will
arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change

occurs.
xiv. Employeestockoptionscheme

The Employee Stock Option Scheme (the'Scheme') provides for grant of stock options of the
Company and of group companies to employees and Directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The accounting for the Scheme is done in accordance with the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Employees Stock Option Scheme and Employees Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 1999. The Company follows the intrinsic value method to
account for its stock-based employee compensation plans as per the Guidance note on
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Significant accounting policies (contd.)

XV.

XVi.

'Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments', issued by the ICAI. If options are granted
at an exercise price, which is less than the fair market price of the underlying equity shares,
the excess of such fair market price over the exercise price of the options asat the grant date
isrecognisedasadeferred compensation cost.

Equityindex & stockfutures

(a) Equity index / stock futures are marked to market on a daily basis. Debit or credit
balance disclosed under loans and advances or current liabilities respectively in the
mark to market margin — equity index / stock futures account represents the net
amount paid or received on the basis of movementin the prices ofindex/stock futures
tillthebalancesheetdate.

(b)  As on the balance sheet date profit / loss on open positions in equity index / stock
futuresisaccountedasfollows:

o Credit balance in the mark to market margin - equity index / stock futures
account, being the anticipated profit, is ignored and no credit for the same is
takenintheprofitandlossaccount

] Debit balance in the mark to market margin - equity index / stock futures
account, beinganticipatedloss,isadjustedin the profitandlossaccount.

(c) Onthefinal settlementor squaring up of contracts for equity index / stock futures, the
profitorlossis calculated as the difference between the settlement/squaring up price
and the contract price. Accordingly, the debit or credit balance pertaining to the
settled / squared up contract in mark to market margin — equity index / stock futures
account after adjustment for the provision of anticipated losses is recognised in the
profitandlossaccount.

When more than one contractin respect of the relevant series of equity index / stock
futures contract to which the squared up contract pertains is outstanding at the time
of squaring up, the price of the contract so squared up is determined using the
weighted average costmethod for calculating the profit/loss onsquaringup.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets
are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready forits intended use. All other borrowing costs
arechargedto profitandlossaccount.
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Notesonaccounts

1) Companiesincludedin consolidation

JM FINANCIAL

Particulars

Country of

incorporation

Proportion of
interestason
31.03.2008 (%)

Proportion of
interestason
31.03.2007(%)

Subsidiaries

JMFinancial Consultants Private Limited (IB)
(Refertonotea)

JMFinancial Services Private Limited (Financial Services)
(Refertonotea)

JMFinancial Investment Managers Limited
(Investment Managers)

JMFinancial Commtrade Limited (Commtrade)

JMFinancial Ventures Limited (SSF) (Refer tonoteb)
(Formerly KampaniFinance Limited)

JMFinancial Products Private Limited (NBFC)
(Refertonotec)

JMFinancial Securities Private Limited (FID)
(Refertonotea)

JMFinancial ASK Securities Private Limited. (IED)
(Refertonoted)

JMFinancial Asset Management Private Limited
(AMC) (Refertonotee)

JMFinancial Holding (Mauritius) Ltd (JMFM)

JMF-BR Investments Holdings (Mauritius) Ltd (JMFBR)
(Refer tonotef)

Jointventures

Infinite IndiaInvestment Management Private Limited
(Infinite)

Morgan Stanley India Company Private Limited (MS)
(Refertonotea)

Associates

JMFinancial AssetReconstruction
Company Private Limited (ARC) (Refertonote g)

Financial EngineeringSolutions Private Limited (FES)

JMFinancial Trustee Company Private Limited (Trustee)

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

Mauritius

Mauritius

India

India

India

India

India

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00
97.78

90.00

90.00

60.00

58.26

100.00

100.00

50.00

67.43

30.00

25.00

51.00

51.00

100.00

100.00
50.00

100.00

51.00

49.92

100.00

100.00

50.00

49.00

30.00

25.00
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Notes on accounts (contd.)

Notes:a) Following the termination of joint venture with Morgan Stanley on October 5, 2007, the
financials derived from management certified accounts of MS have been considered in the
CFS of the Company only till September 30,2007. Similarly, consequent upon the acquisition
of the remaining 49% equity stake of Morgan Stanley by the Company in IB, the Company has
consolidated 100% of the financials of IB with effect from October I,2007 along with the two
wholly owned subsidiaries of IB viz., Financial Services and FID, in which the Company, prior
to the acquisition of the said 49% stake, held 51%. Further from February 28, 2008, FID has
becomeasubsidiary of the NBFC and hence the financials of FID is accounted from February
28,2008, inaccordance with note (c).

b) On October 31, 2007, the Company has invested Rs.301 crore in JM Financial Ventures
Limited (SSF), engaged in Special Situations Investments. Consequently, SSF has become a
subsidiary company of the Company, which now owns 97.78% of SSF from 50% in the
previous year. The financial statements of SSF have been audited for the year ended March
31,2008. Forthe purpose of the CFS, thefinancials of SSFfor the period of five months period
endedMarch 31,2008 have been derived from the twelve months audited figuresfortheyear
ended March 31, 2008, by reducing there from the figures based on management certified
accountsfortheseven months period ended October 31,2007.

¢) JM Financial Limited (the Company) transferred / sold 5,44,50,000 equity shares,
representing 10% of the equity capital, in the NBFC to /M Financial Group Employees
Welfare Trust'(the Trust) for the benefit of the employees of JM Financial Group on
December 31,2007. Accordingly, the financials of the NBFC though consolidated fully, but
10% of it being shown as minority interest with effect from the said date. For the purpose of
the CFS, the results for the three months period ended March 31, 2008 have been derived
from twelve months audited figures for the year ended March 31, 2008 by reducing there
from the figures based on management certified accounts for the nine months period ended
December31,2007.

d) On October 25, 2007, IB has acquired 60% equity stake in IED, a company engaged in
Institutional broking activity. The financial statements of IED have been audited for the
period ended March 31, 2008. For the purpose of the CFS, the financials of IED for the six
months period ended March 31, 2008 have been derived from the twelve months audited
figures ended March 31,2008, by reducing there from the figures based on audited accounts
forthesixmonths periodended September 30,2007.

e) On October 31, 2007, the Company has invested Rs. 90 crore in JM Financial Asset
Management Private Limited (AMC). Consequently, AMC has become a subsidiary company
of the Company, which now owns 58.26% in AMC from 49.92% in the previous year. The
financial statements of AMC have been audited for the year ended March 31,2008. For the
purpose of the CFS, the financials of AMC for the five months period ended March 31,2008

116



JM FINANCIAL

Notes on accounts (contd.)

have been derived from the twelve months audited figures for the year ended March 31,
2008, by reducing there from the figures based on management certified accounts for the
seven months period ended October 31,2007.

f)  As]JMFBR follows the accounting year from January to December and gets accounts audited
on a December year end basis, separate financial statements for the year ended March 31
2008 areunaudited, theamounts whereofare not material.

g) Thoughthe Company owns 67.43% share capital of ARCasonMarch 31,2008, its holding has
reduced to 49% in accordance with the agreement between the Company, ARC and other
investors and hence the ARC has been considered as an ‘Associate’; and consolidated
accordinglyinthe CFS to the extent of49%.

2) Following the termination of the joint venture with Morgan Stanley, profit on sale of investments
(net of carrying value of net assets and expenses) amounting to Rs.1,637.94 crore has been
accountedinthefinancial year 2007-08. Further, aloss of Rs. 8.05 crore (net of the carrying value of
net assets) on sale of 5,44,50,000 equity shares representing 10% of the equity share capital in the
NBFC, hasbeenadjusted toarriveat the netprofitonsale ofinvestments.

3) Employeestockoptionscheme (ESOS)

The Compensation Committee, (the Committee) of Directors of the Company, atits meeting held
on December 27,2007 had granted 4,45,500 stock options exercisable into equivalent number of
equity shares of the face value of Rs.10/- each to the employees / Directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The Committee, atits meetingheld on March 29,2008 had cancelledall the stock options granted as
above.

Subsidiary companies

(a)  JMFinancial Asset ManagementPrivate Limited (AMC)

The shareholders of AMC have on December 24, 2007 granted 30,00,000 equity stock
options to its employees under an Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) to be settled by
theissue of equity shares.

(b)  JMFinancial ASK Securities Private Limited (IED)

The shareholders of IED have on January 7,2008 granted 1,98,650 equity stock options to its
employees under an Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) to be settled by the issue of
equity shares.
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Notes on accounts (contd.)

4) The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided
forisRs.2.50crore (previousyearRs.2.10 crore)

5) Contingentliabilityin respect of:
Disputed demands ofincometaxauthoritiesisRs.3.6| crore (previousyearRs. 10.14crore)
Disputed demandsofservice taxauthoritiesisRs. | .47 crore (previousyearRs. |.47 crore)
Uncalled liability on account of commitment to subscribe in investments is Rs.16.29 crore
(previousyearRs.61.35crore)
Guarantees given on behalf of the subsidiary against pledge of fixed deposits is Rs. 2.30 crore

(previousyearRs.2.30crore)

6) Income from securities and fund-based activities includes gross income of Rs. 187.36 crore
(previous year Rs. 70.66 crore) net of operation expenses of Rs. 101.97 crore (previous year Rs.
43.96 crore).

Operation expenses as stated above includes finance charges of Rs. 96.79 crore (previous year Rs.
42.93 crore) and other expenses of Rs.5.18 crore (previousyearRs. .03 crore)

7) Managerial remuneration: (Rs. in crore)
Particulars Fortheyearended | Fortheyearended
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
Remuneration 2.24 .13
Contribution to providentfundand otherfunds 0.15 0.06
Bonus 5.73 10.55
Perquisitesin cashorinkind |.46 0.49
Commission 0.45 1.21
TOTAL 9.58 13.44

The above amount comprises managerial remuneration of the Company and its subsidiary
companies. Provision for payment of Directors' Commission of Rs. 0.45 crore has been madein the
annual accounts of the Company. This amount is in excess of the limits prescribed under the
Companies Act, 1956 and hence is subject to the approval of the shareholders and central
government. The Company has not paid the commissionamountto the Directors and the same will
be paidonlyonreceiptofthesaidapprovals.

The above remuneration also includes Rs 6.06 crore (previous year Rs.5.14 crore) which pertains
to subsidiaries which is in excess of the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956 and
payment where of issubjectto theapproval of central government.
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8)

%)

Earnings pershareis calculatedasunder:

JM FINANCIAL

(Rs. in crore)

Sr. Particulars Fortheyearended | Fortheyearended
No. 31.03.2008 31.03.2007
A. Before exceptionalitem:
Profitafter tax 150.11 90.87
Weightedaverageno.ofequity shares 3,00,00,000 2,93,18,493
outstanding duringthe year
Basic/Diluted earnings pershare (Rs.) 50.04 30.99
B. After exceptionalitem:
Profitafter tax 1,307.06 90.87
Weightedaverage no.of equity shares 3,00,00,000 2,93,18,493
outstandingduringtheyear
Basic/Diluted earnings pershare (Rs.) 435.69 30.99

Major components of deferred tax assetsand liabilities arisingare:

(Rs. in crore)

Particulars Asat Asat
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
Depreciation (1.35) (1.21)
Gratuity 1.76 0.93
Provisionfor doubtful debts 0.66 0.62
Unabsorbed depreciation - 0.26
Broughtforwardbusinesslosses - 0.02
Unabsorbedshort-term capital loss (115.43) -
Written down value ofinvestments - 0.01
Preliminary expenses (0.01) -
Expensesallowable undersection35DD 0.69 0.82
TOTAL (113.68) 1.45
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10)

Leasetransactions:

l. Financelease

JM FINANCIAL

The Company on a consolidated basis has acquired vehicles on finance lease. The tenure of

lease arrangements ranges between 36 to 60 months with an option to prepayments /

foreclosure.

Minimum lease rentals outstanding with respectto theseassetsareasunder:

(Rs. in crore)

Particulars Totalminimumlease | Interestnotdue| Presentvalueofthe
paymentoutstanding minimum lease
asat31.03.2008 paymentoutstanding
(31.03.2007) asat31.03.2008
(31.03.2007)
Notlaterthan | year .29 0.36 0.93
(0.68) (0.18) (0.50)
Laterthan | year butnot .22 0.28 0.94
later than 5years (0.52) (0.10) (0.42)
Laterthan5years - - -
) -) )
TOTAL 2.51 0.64 1.87
(1.20) (0.28) (0.92)

Figuresinbrackets representfigures of thepreviousyear

Il. Operatinglease

(a) Operatinglease is executed for a period ranging from 36 to 90 months with a renewal

clause and also provided for termination at will by lessee giving a prior notice period

between | to 6 months.

Operatingleaserentals charged torevenueare:

(Rs. in crore)

Particulars Fortheyearended | Fortheyearended
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
Office premises 8.21 4.43
Furniture hire charges 0.15 0.18
Carrentals 0.07 -
Residential flat 0.54 0.21
TOTAL 8.97 4.82
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1)

JM FINANCIAL

(b)  Minimum lease rentals outstanding in respect of non-cancelable operating lease are as
under:
(Rs. in crore)
Particulars Totallease Totallease
payments payments
outstanding outstanding
asat31.03.2008 asat31.03.2007
Notlaterthan | year 6.35 3.10
Laterthan | year butnotlaterthan5years 4.67 6.93
Laterthan5years = -
TOTAL 11.02 10.03

Retirementbenefits

1. Defined benefitplans

(Rs.in crore)

Amountrecognisedinthebalancesheetinrespectofgratuity Fortheyearended

March31,2008
Presentvalue ofthe defined benefit obligationattheyear end 4.15
Fairvalue of planassets -
Netliability/ (asset) 4.15

(Rs.in crore)

Amountsrecognisedinsalary,wagesand employeebenefitsinthe | Fortheyearended
profitandlossaccountinrespectofgratuity March31,2008
Currentservice cost 1.27
Intereston defined benefitobligations 0.23
Expectedreturnonplanassets =
Netactuarial (gain)/loss recognised duringthe period 0.11
Netgratuity cost 1.61

(Rs.in crore)

Actualreturnonplanassets

Fortheyearended
March31,2008

Expectedreturnonplanassets

Actuarialgain/ (loss)onplanassets
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Notes on accounts (contd.)
(Rs. in crore)

Tableshowingchangeinbenefitobligations Fortheyearended
March 31,2008

Openingdefined benefitobligation 2.99
Currentservice cost .26
Interest cost 0.20
Actuarial (gain)/loss 0.14
Liabilityassumed onamalgamation =
Benefits paid (0.44)
Closingdefined benefitobligation 4.15

(Rs. in crore)

Changeinfairvalueofplan assets Fortheyearended
March31,2008

Openingfair value of the planassets -
Expectedreturnonplanassets -
Actuarial (gain) /loss -
Assetsacquired onamalgamation -
Contributions by the employer -

Benefits paid ”

Closingfairvalue ofthe planassets -

(Rs.in crore)

Investmentdetails of planassets Fortheyearended
March 31,2008

Investmentdetails of planassets -

Principal actuarialassumptionsatthebalancesheetdate Fortheyearended
March 31,2008

Discountrate 7.50%

Estimated rate of returnon planassets 6.00%

Valuationassumptions:

Forthe purpose ofarrivingattheliability, thefollowingassumptions have been considered:

® Rate of discounting: 7.5% per annum
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Notes on accounts (contd.)

() The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, taking
account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors in the
employmentmarket. Theactuary certifies theaboveinformation.

® Thisbeingthefirstyear ofimplementation, figuresfromthe previousyearhavenotbeengiven.

Il. Definedcontributionplan

o Amount recognised as an expense and included in the Schedule | — ‘Contribution to
provident fund & other funds’ Rs. 4.48 crore (previous year Rs. 2.56 crore)

2) Derivativeinstruments:

The Company does not enter into any derivative instruments for hedge or speculation. The year
endforeign currency exposures have notbeenhedgedbyaderivativeinstrument.

I3) Disclosureinrespectofsecuritisedassets:

Profit on the sale of securitised assets consists of gross income of Rs. .69 crore (previous year nil)
net of professional fees of Rs.0.24 crore (previous year nil) and other expenses of Rs.0.05 crore
(previousyearnil).

There is no outstanding value of any services provided by way of credit enhancement, liquid
support, post-securitisationassetservicing, etc.

14) During the year, on a conservative basis, a subsidiary has made a provision on standard assets
amounting to Rs. 12.04 crore(previous year Rs.0.09 crore). ‘Standard Assets’ refers to an asset which
doesnotindicateany problemsand which does not carry morethan normalbusinessrisk.

I5) Disclosureinrespectofrelated parties pursuantto AS |8 on'Related Party Disclosures’

Asperannexure‘I’.
16) Segmentalreporting
1) Businesssegment:

The Group hasreorganisedits businessesinto four reportable segments, namely, Investment
banking & securities business, asset management, alternative asset management and
securities funding & fund-based activities.

Segment Principalactivities

Investmentbanking & securities business Investment banking and securities business
includes advisory and execution services of diverse
nature to corporates, institutes, governments and
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Notes on accounts (contd.)

government owned corporations, banks and high
net-worth individuals (HNIs); to offer wealth
advisory services to HNIs; and to distribute
financial products in an open architecture
environment to retail investors through a large
network offranchiseesand directsalesagents

Assetmanagement Asset management includes managing mutual fund
assets through several schemes offering a range of
investmentoptionstoalargenumber ofinvestors.

Alternativeassetmanagement Alternative asset management includes managing
funds of institutional and large non-institutional
investors raised under various schemes for
investments under mandated charter such as
private equity, real estate fund, specialsituations.

Securities funding & fund-based activities Securities funding and fund-based activities
includes providing finance against securities to a
diverse range of corporate and non-corporate
clients. Further, it also includes identifying,
acquiring and selling down debt assets through a
range of structured products.

Unallocated Unallocated includes all transactions not covered
underany of theabove four segments.

Thesegmentwisedetailsareasperannexure‘ll’.
Il. Geographicalsegment:
The Company doesnothaveanyreportable geographical segment.

17) Statementof cashflowpursuantto AS 3 on'Cash Flow Statements’

Asperannexure ‘lII’.
p

I18) Disclosurepursuanttoreportingunder AS27 on ‘Financial ReportingofinterestsinJoint Ventures’

Asperannexure‘lV’.

19) Figuresfromthepreviousyearhavebeenregroupedandrearrangedwherevernecessary.
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Annexure |l to point |5 of schedule K
Related party disclosure:
1 List of related parties

Parties other than where control exist with whom the Company / subsidiaries have entered into
transactions during the year:

A Associates:
JM Financial Asset Reconstruction Company Private Limited (ARC)
JM Financial Trustee Company Private Limited (Trustee)
B Key management personnel
Mr. Nimesh N Kampani (NNK)
C Relatives of key management personnel
Mrs. Aruna N Kampani (ANK)
Mr. Vishal N Kampani (VNK)
Mr. Ashith N Kampani (ASNK)

D Enterprise over which key management personnel is able to exercise significant
influence

J.M. Financial & Investment Consultancy Services Private Limited (JMFICS)
SNK Investments Private Limited (SNK)

Persopolis Investments Company Private Limited (PICPL)

Kampani Properties & Holdings Limited (KPHL)

Kampani Consultants Limited (KCL)

1l Related party relationships have been identified by the management and relied upon by
auditors
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Annexure Il to point 16 of schedule K

Segmentwise details

JM FINANCIAL

(Rs. in crore)

Particulars As at As at
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
Segment revenue
A Investment banking and securities business 615.34 425.88
B Asset management 22.74 -
C Alternative asset management 40.16 9.08
D Securities funding and fund based activities 86.83 26.70
E Unallocated 43.72 41.81
Total segment revenue 808.79 503.47
Less: Inter-segmental revenue 66.50 59.42
Total revenue before exceptional item 742.29 444.05
Add: Profits on sale of investments (Net) 1,629.89 =
Total revenue 2,372.18 444.05
Segment results
A Investment banking and securities business 187.09 151.39
B Asset management (17.45) -
C Alternative asset management 4.77 0.04
D Securities funding and fund based activities 70.24 2347
E Unallocated 35.50 8.04
Total segment results before exceptional item 280.15 182.94
Add: Exceptional items (Net) 1,509.60 =
Total segment results 1,789.75 182.94
Segment assets
A Investment banking and securities business 1,400.78 911.88
B Asset management 80.30 14.19
C Alternative asset management 444.01 55.90
D Securities funding and fund based activities 1,327.56 536.88
E Unallocated 397.88 174.21
Total segment assets 3,650.52 1,693.05
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JM FINANCIAL

(Rs.in crore)

Particulars As at As at
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
Segment liabilities
A Investment banking and securities business 887.46 557.84
B Asset management 10.90 3.13
C Alternative asset management 40.86 18.34
D Securities funding and fund based activities 613.89 346.00
E Unallocated 234.09 42.00
Total segment liabilities 1,787.20 967.31
Capital expenditure incurred during the year
A Investment banking and securities business 10.79 13.87
B Asset management 1.33 -
C Alternative asset management 3.66 0.40
D Securities funding and fund based activities 0.24 0.03
E Unallocated 0.76 0.10
Total capital expenditure 16.77 14.40
Depreciation / amortisation for the year
A Investment banking and securities business 7.83 6.94
B Asset management 1.28 -
C Alternative asset management 0.54 0.05
D Securities funding and fund based activities 0.04 0.03
E Unallocated 0.10 0.03
Total depreciation / amortisation 9.79 7.04
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Statement of consolidated cash flow for the year ended March 31,2008

Annexure lll to pointno.|17 of schedule K .
(Rs. in crore)

For the year | For the year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
A Cashflow from operating activities

Net profit before tax 1,789.75 182.94
Adjustment for :
Depreciation 9.79 7.04
Provision on standard assets 12.04 0.09
(Profit) / Loss on sale of investments (1,642.23) (6.52)
Provision for doubtful debts 1.01 1.00
Dividend income (34.45) (12.24)
Interest income (51.38) (14.22)
Interest expenses 32.83 7.84
Bad debts written off 041 0.38
(Profit)/ Loss on sale of fixed assets 0.10 0.16
Sundry liabilities written back - (0.08)
Provision for gratuity 3.24 0.30
Operating profit before working capital changes 121.11 166.69
Adjustment for:
(Increase) / Decrease in trade & other receivables (746.51) 3,374.47
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables (72.96) (3,158.32)
Cash generated from / (used in) operations (698.36) 382.84
Direct taxes paid (84.50) (70.68)
Net cash from / (used in) operating activities (782.86) 312.16
Cashflow from investment activities
Purchase of investments (20,795.73) (165.99)
Sale of investments 21,772.53 28.69
Direct taxes paid (360.00) -
Purchase of fixed assets (23.77) (14.40)
Sale of fixed assets 1.26 0.23
Capital reserve adjustment on acquisition & sale (net) 67.42 -
Goodwill on acquisition (107.54) -
Adjustment of minorities interest due to increase
in stake in subsidiaries (47.20) -
Interest income 51.38 14.22
Dividend income 34.45 12.24
Net cash from / (used in) investment activities 592.80 (125.01)
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JM FINANCIAL

For the year | For the year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
C Cashflow from financing activities

Proceeds / (Redemption) from share capital including
securities premium - 134.29
Proceeds from borrowings 18,507.63 3,401.03
Repayment of from borrowings (17,874.57) (3,279.47)
Share Issue expenses (3.55) (3.17)
Interest paid (32.83) (3.50)
Dividend paid including corporate tax (15.00) (8.55)
Dividend paid to minority shareholders (2.55) (2.06)
Tax paid on dividend by subsidiaries / joint venture (0.05) (4.37)
Net cash from financing activities 579.08 234.21
Net increase in cash & cash equivalents 389.02 421.36
Cash & cash equivalents (opening) 513.36 92.00
Cash & cash equivalents (closing) (refer note no. 3) 902.38 513.36

Notes:

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" set out in AS 3 on ‘Cash
Flow Statement’ notified in Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 902.40 514.88
Less: Overdrawn bank balances as per books (0.02) (1.52)
Balance as shown in cash flow statement 902.38 513.36
3 Theinterest income reflected above is other than interest income of securities funding and fund

based activity whose interest income of Rs. 86. 24 crore (net of interest expenses of Rs. 101.97
crore) (previous year Rs. 26.70 crore and Rs. 43.96 crore respectively) being treated as income

from operating activities.

As per our attached report of even date

For and on behalf of

Khimji Kunveriji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Shivji K Vikamsey Nimesh N Kampani E A Kshirsagar

Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director
Membership No. 2242
Place: Mumbai Manish Sheth P K Choksi

Date: May 28, 2008 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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JM FINANCIAL

The Reporting Company's proportionate share in the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of its joint
venture companies included in these consolidated financial statements are given below:

(Rs.in crore)

Balance sheet As at As at
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ funds :
Share capital 0.80 491
Reserves and surplus 1.59 97.28
Loan funds :
Unsecured loans 2.17 10.75
Funds employed 4.56 112.94
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed assets :
Gross block 0.26 14.98
Less : Depreciation 0.06 10.68
Net block 0.20 4.30
Capital work in progress - 0.11
0.20 44|
Investments 0.08 42.49
Deferred tax assets (net) 0.02 0.0l
Current assets, loans and advances :
Sundry debtors [.10 35.30
Cash and bank balances 0.0l 293.13
Loans and advances 0.98 44.25
2.09 372.68
Less : Current liabilities and provisions :
Current liabilities .16 306.32
Provisions 0.09 0.33
1.25 306.65
Net current assets 0.84 66.03
Profit & loss account (Debit balance) 3.43 -
Funds utilised 4.56 112.94
Contingent liability - 6.77
Capital reserve on consolidation 1.00 7.08
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JM FINANCIAL

(Rs.in crore)

Profit and loss account As at As at
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
INCOME
Commission, brokerage and fees income 66.27 102.96
Management fees 4.60 0.08
Interest & other income 19.89 18.37
TOTAL 90.77 121.41
EXPENDITURE
Payments to and provisions for employees 29.32 32.59
Operating and administration expenses 12.70 20.55
Interest 0.27 0.06
Depreciation / amortisation 0.65 .10
TOTAL 42.95 54.30
Profit before tax 47.82 67.11
Provision for tax
- Current tax 16.51 21.56
- Deferred tax (0.02) 0.10
- Fringe benefit tax 0.1 0.18
16.60 21.84
Profit after tax 31.21 45.27
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Persons falling under the Group of JM Financial Limited
(Other than Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures) includes

[ Mr. Nimesh N Kampani

® Mrs. Aruna N Kampani

® Mr. Vishal N Kampani

® Mrs.MadhuV Kampani

® Ms. AmishiN Kampani

o J.M.Financial & Investment Consultancy Services Private Limited
o J.M. Assets Management Private Limited

L JSB Securities Limited

o FICS Consultancy Services Limited

o Kampani Consultants Limited

° SNK Investments Private Limited

® Persepolis Investment Company Private Limited
® KampaniProperties & Holdings Limited

Names of the subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures entities are given in para Il (I) of
Schedule 'K’

134



Our core team

b __
Confederation of I

2nd Capital Markets St
Theme g&ping | ?'-ulatlons a‘Deepi ning Cap J\LE \

ﬂ = g e

7

7

-. FIcE% A

'mncc;ml:

dl Ficct [JTo

Our thought leadership




JM FINANCIAL

Reaching out :
Walkathon 2008; inauguration of a school for destitutes; medical camps for the elderly.

Celebrating our people
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JM FINANCIAL LIMITED ATTENDANCE SLIP

Twenty Third Annual General Meeting

(To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting hall)

| hereby record my presence at the TWENTY THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company on Friday, July 25, 2008
at 4.00 p.m. at Walchand Hirachand Hall, 4th Floor, Indian Merchants' Chamber, Churchgate, Mumbai - 400 020.

Full name of Member (in BLOCK LETTERS)
Folio No.: Client ID: DP ID:
No. of Shares held:

Full name of Proxy (in BLOCK LETTERS)

Member's / Proxy's Signature

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- CUT HERE  --orrrrrrrmmemm s
JM FINANCIAL LIMITED PROXY FORM
Folio No.: Client ID: DP ID: No. of Shares held:

I/We of in the district of

being a Member / Members of the above named Company hereby appoint

of in the district of or failing him / her

of in the district of as my / our proxy
to vote for me / us on my / our behalf at the TWENTY THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company to be held on

Friday, July 25, 2008 and at any adjournment thereof. Afi
X
Re. /-
Revenue
Stamp
Signed this day of 2008 Signature across Revenue Stamp

Note: This proxy form duly completed and signed must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not later than
forty-eight hours before the meeting.

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- CUT HERE  -oereesseeress e

JM FINANCIAL LIMITED MANDATE FORM - ELECTRONIC CLEARING SERVICE (ECS)
(To be sent directly to the DP / RTA / Company)

To
(Name & Address of the DP / RTA / Company)

Please register the following details for receipt of dividend:

Type of Instruction : Remittance of amount through ECS
IC\:l?me ID / Folio N Bank Name:
el - N Bank Address:
DP ID 3
Bank Details

Account Type and No.: SB/CA/CC No.:
9 Digit MICR Code:

Date: Signature of the Member(s)

Members are requested to send their question(s), if any, to the Company Secretary /Chief Financial Officer at the registered
office of the Company, so that the answers/ details can be kept ready.




JM FINANCIAL

Trust is always the answer
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